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DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE

18 Mew Hempstead Road
New City, New York 10956
(¥14) 638-5131

Fax. (914} 638-5644

€ 5COTT VANDERHOEF GRORGE W RENC, CPA

8 - iw . i Comrmissioner
County bxecutive June 20! 1908
LEONARDO S FORTE, CPa
DBeputy Commussioner

To the Honorable County Executive
and the County Legisiature of the
County of Rockliand, New York:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the County of Rockland, New York, for the vear

ended December 31 10897 is submitted herewith,

This report has been prepared by the County's Department of Finance in accordance with generaily
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) set forth in the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness
of the presentation, including all disclosures, resis with the County. We believe the information as
presented, (s accurate in all matenal respects, that it is presented in 2 manner designed to fairly set forth
the Snan{:z‘ai position and results of operations of the County as measured by the financial activity of its
various funds, account groups and component units and that all disclosures necessary 1o enabile the reader

to gain the maximum understanding of the County's financial activity have been included.
This report has also been prepared and organized to meet the requirements of the Govemnment

Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program. In

accordance with program requirements, the accompanying report is divided into three major sections:
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. introductory Section - This section includes a brief explanation of the governmeni's

organization. economic condition and outiock, future directions and a variety of financial

irformation.

* Financial Section - This section includes the independent audifors’ report, general purpose

financial statermnents, notes to the financia!l statemenis and combining and individual fund

financial statements and schedules.

® Statistical Section - Although this seclion contains substantial financial information, these

tables differ from financial statements in that they present some non-accounting data and
present multi-year figures which are designed fc reflect social and economic data, financial

trends and the fiscal capacity of the County.

THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

This report includes all of the funds and account groups of the County. It includes all County
grganizations and activities for which the County is financially accountable. The County has considered all
potential component units based on criteria set forth in GASE Statement No. 14, including legal standing,
fiscal dependency and financial accountability. Based on these criteria, the Rockland County Community
Coliege, Industrial Development Agency the Soif and Water Conservation District and Solid Wasle
Management Authority are considered component units and are included in the County's reporting entity as

discrete presentations.

The County provides the foliowing services to its residents: education, public safety, health,
fransportation, economic cpportunity and development, culture and recreation, home and communily

services and general and administrative support,



GOVERNMENT ORGANIZATION

Subject to the State Constitution. the County operates pursuant to its Charter, County Law. General
Municipal Law and other laws governing the County generally to the extent that such laws are applicable to

a County operating under the charter form of government,

The County of Rockiand has adopted Local Law No. 14 of 1984 (the "Local Law"} providing for a
charter form of government in accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Home Rule Law of the State
of New York. Effective January 1, 1986, the County began operating as a charter form of government as

provided in the Local Law

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The County of Rockland enjoyed a healthy increase in its fund balance for 1897. The increase was
prirmarily due to a continuation of cost control initiatives instituted by the County Executive, the reduction of

definquent real property taxes and an increase in sales tax revenues,

The County Execulive’'s cost control measures included confinuous budgetary reviews of
departmental operations, hmiting budget transfers and challenging depariment heads to increase
deparimental revenues. The Department of Hospitals has reduced its County support from $8.2 mullion in
1985 to zero n the 1998 budget For 1987, General Fund revenues exceeded expendilures Dy
314 514 680 The unreserved and undesignated fund balance increased by 311,045,685 for a total at

December 31 1997 of $27 168,623,

Continued strong efforts in delinquent real property tax collections by the Commissioner of Finance
reduced the outstanding tax sale cerlificates and tax instaliments by $7.245,494  The County Executive

proposal of offering the towns a quarierly tax payment option was approved by the County Legisiature.
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Three of the five towns opted for the quarterly tax payment method and over 3000 taxpayers availed
themseives of this option.  This reduction of delinquent real properly taxes had a significant effect on the

ncrease in fund balance.

The 1998 Rockiand County budget showed a 8.2% reduction in the real property tax levy.
This is the fourth consecutive year that the County Executive has reduced the real property tax levy. This
was accompiished by the County bExecutive requiring commissioners and department heads to pian their
budgets with atfainable goals within budget guidelines. The County workforce has been reduced by
consclidation and early retirement incentives. Costs were aiso cut through continued improvements in

quakty innovations.

i 1997, the County aftracted and retained 10 companies and 1,800 jobs. This increase in
the tabor force combined with the excellent economic conditions throughout the country and County have
generated sales tax revenues over budget projections, again playing an important part of the increase in

fund balance.

FUTURE DIRECTIONS

The County of Rockland continues to look favorably toward the future. The opening of a new retad
mall -The Palisades Center - has provided thousands of new jobs in the managerial and retail sectors. This

should provide a continued source of additional sales tax revenue.

The County's computerization project which began in 1897 is moving rapidly ahead in 1988 The
new financial software was installed in January 1998 The Human Resources software program s being
implemented and should be operational before the end of this year. The network infrastructure is complete
and e-mail and Internet services are being expanded to the departments of the County. Hospital software

and tax delinquency software programs are in the selection process, The County of Rockland will move
vi



into the 21st Century with the confidence that it will have the latest technology to serve the employees and

the people of the County of Rockland efficiently and effectively.

The County Executive continues to explore different ways to improve the quaiity of life for County
residents. A continuous effort is made at the Federal and State level to prevent the reduction of program
funding and to prevent mandated programs from being passed down without proper funding. A continued
concerr at the State level is maintained for the proper funding of the educational needs of our residents.
School taxes. approved by our local school boards, account for approximately 67% of the total yearly tax
bill. Promoting additional funds at the State level and ways to distribute them equitably to reduce the
burden of escalating school taxes s essential to the future of the County and all counties of New York, The
County Executive and County Legislators are working vigorously towards tax relief and will continue to

explore ail available options.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

These financial statements, accompanying schedules and tables have been prepared on a fund
basis using accourting policies that are in accordance with generslly accepted accounting principles
applicable to governmental units and higher education institutions as prescribed by the American Institute

of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) and GASE,

The modiied accrual basis & foflowed in the governmental fund types, expendable trust and
agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when measurable
and available. Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability s incurred, except as described

in the notes to the financial statements.

The proprietary funds follow the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilites are

ncurred Fixed assels and long-term liabiities related o these activilies are recorded within the funds.
il



Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of funds are recorded in order {0 reserve that portion of the appropriation, is employed in the
governmental funds. in the governmental funds, encumbrances are reported as a reservation of fund

palance since they do not constitute expenditures or Habilities.

In developing and evaluating the County's accounting system, consideration is given ‘o the
adequacy of internal accounting controis.  In general, accounting controls are designed fo provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition, the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and
maintaming accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a
control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and the valuation of costs and benefits requires

astimates and judgmenis by management.

All internal control evaiuations occur within the above framework. We betlieve the County's internal
accounting controls adequately safeguards assets and provides reasonable assurance of proper recording

of finarcial fransactions.

The County maintains an internal audit staff that reports to the County Executive. This internal
audit staff performs penodic and regular financial and operational audits throughout the County's agencies
and departments, The Legisiature maintains an office responsible for “Legisiative Oversight” activities.

Both of these organizations enhance the internal control of the County’s government.

The activities of the General, Special Revenue ang Debt Service funds are included in the annual
appropriated budget. The Capital Projects Fund is budgeted on a project basis. The budgetary controls
{that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) are established at
the department level Budgetary control is alsc maintained over appropriations by the encumbrance of
purchase amounts prior to the release of purchase orders o vendors.
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General Fund

The General Fund constitutes the pnmary operating fund of the County in that #t includes all
revenues and expenditures not required by law to be accounted for n other funds. For the year ended
December 31, 1887, actual revenues and other financing sowrces exceeded actual expenditures and other
financing uses by $14.514 680 The total fund balance increased from $18,478,485 at December 31, 15986

to $34, 164 759 at December 31, 1997,

These results are summarnzed as follows:

1897
Budget as 1957 1996
Revised Actuial Actual
Revenues and Cther
Financing Scurces $ 2688918177 $ 267 259531 $ 260431685
Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses 272,325 883 252 744 851 250 462 308
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources Over Expenditures
ang Other Uses {3,406 8086 14,514 680 9,968 777
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 3406 806 18,478 485 9,509,708
Residual Equity Transfer - 171,594 -
Fund Balance - End of Year & - % 34,164 758 Z 19.478 485

Of the total fund balance of $34,164 759 at December 31, 1897, $1.403.362 has been reserved for
encumbrances, prepaid expenditures, law enforcement and the Stop-DWI Program. The Designation for
Section 8 totaled $92 474, The amount designated for 1998 is $5 500,000, resulting i an undesignated
fund batance of $27,168,923 as of December 31, 1947

Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Revenues and other financing sources in the General Fund of $267 258 531 fell short of the revised

budget of 3268818177 by $1.659,6456  Actual revenues and other financing sources increased by
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$6.827 845 from 1996 to 1897, The revenues and other financing sources and the changes from 1996 are

shown in the following table:

Increase
{(Decrease) Parcent of
Revenues and FPercent from increase
Other Financing Sources Amount of Total 1956 {Decrease)
Revenues:
Real property taxes $ 53379206 200% % (2348850} (4.23%
COther tax items 5,519,496 2.4 162 505 2.6
Non-property taxes 82,200,180 aos 6,645 874 8.8
Departmental income 22031470 82 831,255 3.5
Use of money and property 1,844 825 07 240,291 14.9
Licenses and permits 775771 0.3 {(2.572) {0.3)
Fines and forfeitures 817,188 0.2 134 998 28.0
Sale of property and
compensation for loss 20,578 0.0 (9,744) (321}
Interfund revenues 3,847 385 1.4 366,080 105
State aid 60,391,438 225 332,933 08
Federal aid 28058179 108 256,155 08
Miscellaneous 1,631,068 08 (43,882 (2.6}
Total Revenues 262 317,401 881 8,565,157 2.6
Other Financing Sources -
Operating transfers in 4947 130 1.9 262,689 56
Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources $ 267 258 531 10C.0% $ 6827846 26

The County's aggressive effort in enforcing real property tax collections has been successful. While
the current year's real property taxes are below the prior year, both years' amounts were well in excess of
the budgetary estimates. The increase in non-property taxes (sales tax) is afiributable to the strong
sconomic base in the County. The increase is the use of money and property was due to favorable fund
balances available for investment, combined with the increase in interest rates. Fines and forfeitures

increased due to increased collections by the Departments of Weights and Measures, Courts and Health.

Expenditures and Cther Financing Uses

Actual expenditures and other financing uses in the General Fund for the year ended December 31, 1997
ware $252 744 851 or $18 581,132 less than the revised budget of $272,325.883. The actual expenditures
increased $2,281,843 from 1996 to 1997, The actual expenditures and other financing uses for the year
ended December 31, 1987 compared to the year ended December 31, 1886 for governmental functions

are shown in the following table: X



Irncrease

{Decrease) Percent of
Expenditures and Percent from increase
Other Financing Uses Amount of Total 1996 (Becrease]
Exnenditures:
Current:
General government support ¥ 26351172 10.4% 3 264 353 (1.0%
Education 17,6688 155 7.0 (92,187 (0.5
Public safety 28,035 303 1158 531.519 1.9
Health 22.765.864 S0 (B2.475) (04
Transportation 14,080,784 56 540 443 4.0
Economic opportunity and
developrment 102,370,787 405 1.751.493 1.7
Culture and recreation 533,036 0.2 (402,065} {44 43
Home and community services 3,358,911 1.3 774,508 289
Emplovee benafits 699,669 0.3 308,408 78.8
Debt Service 867 508 g3 (379.020% {304}
Total Expenditures 217,682,209 86.1 3,214 878 15
Other Financing Uses -
Cperating transfers out 35,064 647 138 (933 035 (2.6}
Totat Expendiures and

Other Financing Uses $ 257 744 851 1000% $ 2281943 09

The increase in economic opportunity and development is due primarily to increases in the cost of
mandated social services programs. The amount expended for culture and recreation decreased due to a
decrease in payments to contract agencies. The increase in home and community services was due to the
creation of a Department of Environmental Resources which combined four County departments. The
increase in employee benefits was due to compensated absences which are recorded on a current basis.

The decrease in debt service expenditures represents reduced interest costs arising from a reduction in

revenue anticipation notes issued.

Special Revenue Funds

Fevenues and Other Financing Sources

The combined amounts of revenues and other financing sources for the Special Revenue Funds for

the year ended December 31, 1997 compared to the year ended Decermnber 31, 1996 are shown in the

following tabie:
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Revenues and
Other Financing Sources

increass

Revenues:

Real property taxes

Departmental income

Use of money and property

Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeituras

Sale of property and
compensation for ioss

interfund revenues

State aid
Federal aid

fiscellaneous
Total Revenues

Other Financing Sources -
Operating transfers in

Total Revenues and Other
Financing Sources

(Decrease) Percent of

Fercent from Increase

Amount of Total 1846 {Decrease)

15,703,207 43 4 % (83.256) 05 %

125 575 0.4 {20 668) (14.1)
1,224 268 39 268 850 283
20,913 0.0 8208 64 .6
10,604 0.0 431 42
38,500 0.1 36,046 79386
156,068 05 (10,098} 6.1}
713,573 22 (107.301) (13.1)
4 368 867 13.8 1,328 880 438
821413 28 as5 208 7682
23180 983 728 1,778,501 83
8617 168 27.1 924 048 12.0
31 798 162 100 0% 2,702 548 8.3

The increase in the use of money and property was due to the increase n interest rates. Licenses

and permit increases are afiributable fo the increased issuance of county road and Sewer Depariment

permits. State aid declined as a result of the completion of certain County sewer projects. The community

development program was expanded through participation in the HOPWA program, and consequently,

Federal aid increased. Miscellaneous revenues include sewer fines and surcharges, which increased due

to the opening the Palisades Certer Mall.

Expenditures ang Other Financing Uses

The combined amounts of expenditures and other financing uses for the Special Revenue Funds

for the year ended December 31, 1987 compared to the year ended December 31, 1996 are shown in the

following table:
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increase

(Decrease) Percent of
Expenditures and , Percent from Increase
Cther Financing Uses Amourtd of Totat 1996 (Plecrease)
Expenditures:
Current:
Transportation $ 7873180 261% 3 {535,222} {8 31%
Economic opportunity and
development 4 113,872 13.6 1,311,583 46 8
Home and community services 9172.043 303 21221 0.3
Employee benefits 1,150,081 38 (145,235} (11.2)
Debt Service 258 200 08 (157 639) (37 .83
Total Expenditures 22 5688 376 747 504 704 2.3
Other Financing Uses -
Operating transfers out 7.857.079 253 202.785 27
Total Expendifures and
Other Financing Uses $ 30225 455 1000% § 707 489 2.4

The increase in economic opportunity and development expenditures are directly attributable to an

expansion of community development programs. Employee benefits decreased due to a decline in

compensated absences within the Sewer and County Road funds. Debt service expenditures reflect a

decrease in interest rates from 5.5% to 3.8% for sewer bond anticipation nofes.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds include enferprise and intemal service funds Enterprise funds are used fo
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises
or where the governing body has decided that pericdic determination of revenues earned, expenses
ncurred and/or net income s necessary for management accountability. Enterprise funds are used to
account for operations that provide services to the public.  Internal service funds account for operations
that provide services {o other departments or agencies of the government or to other governments, on a
cost reimbursement basis. The operations of the Summit Park Hospital/Rockland County Infirmary are
racorded as an erderprise fund. The County has established its Workers' Compensation Benefits, General
Liability Claims, Unemployment Benefits, MHealih Benefit and General Service funds as intermnal service

funds.

il



Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a trustee or custodial capacity.
Fiduciary funds include Expendable Trust and Agency funds. The Expendabile Trust Fund includes funds
held in trust and reserved for social service programs. The Agency Fund reflects the contributions by the
County empioyees to a deferred compensation plan. The current market value of these contributions was

$62 B82 122 as of December 31, 16897,
Fixed Assets

The fixed assets of the County are those assets used in governmenial and proprietary fund type
operations, Fixed assets consist of land, buildings. improvements, equipment and construction-in-progress
which are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available. No provision
for depreciation is made on fixed assets except for those recorded in the proprietary fund. The total fixed

assets as of December 31, 1997 are as foliows:

Froprietary Funds

internal
General Enterprise Service
Govermment Fund Funds Total
Land $ 8438000 % 438504 % - § 8876504
Buildings 40,518 492 16,221,805 2,980 56,743 377
improvements other than
buildings 348,393,690 345975 “ 348,738,665
Equipment 21,556,195 27,207 861 8,361,307 55,125,363
Construction-in-progress 256,248 340 3,468 950 - 259.718.299
675,185,717 47 683,204 6,364,287 729,203,208
Accumulated depreciation - {26.583.204) (2,618.482) (29,201,684}
Tota $ 675155717 $ 21100002 & 3745805 $ 700,001,524
DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The County of Rockland, New York has received a bond rating from Moody's Investors Service of
A1 which reflects the County's sound financial management. Future debt anticipated within the next five

years will be financed through a combination of bonds and notes as market conditions warrant,
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The long-term bonded debt outstanding at December 31, 1997 totaled $141.047 506, During the

fiscal year, the County amortized $14, 577 000 : principal and interest costs totaled $7.323.427

Revernue anticipation notes and bond anticipation notes outstanding at December 31, 1987 were

$15.000.000 and $6.800,000, respectively.

The ratio of net general iong-term debt to assessed valuation and the amount of net generat long-
term debt per capita are useful to citizens of the County, nvestors and management as indicators of the

County's debt position. At December 31, 1897 this data was as follows:

Ratio of Net
General
Long-Term Net General
Debt to Long-Term
Assessed Debt per
Armourt Yatuation Capita
Net generat long-term debt $ 108482214 114 % % 387 63

CASH MANAGEMENT

The County of Rockland investment policies are governed by New York Siate statutes as more fully
described i the notes to the financial statements. The County primartly invests ds idle cash with local
banks. These investments are placed using a competitive bid process which enables the County to obtain

the best available rate.

A summary of the County's interest eamings for the year ending December 31, 1897, compared {o

December 31, 19986, by fund, is as foliows:

Fund 1997 1965
General $ 1707834 F 1431587
Community Development 13,677 13,341
Sewer 1,210,591 840,977
Debt Service 2,808,902 2.931.041
Waorkers' Compensation Benefits 444 806 278774
General Liability Claims 377,181 389,188
Unemployment Benefits 2,187 1,210
Health Benefits 146,873 137,087
Expendable Trust 2,993 2.058

Total w §_ 6816024 § 6123244




RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is seif-insured for general liability, heaith benefits. unemployment benefits and workers’

compensation benefits. The County aiso has an extensive employee accident prevention program,

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The Legisiative Board has followed a practice of having an independent audit by a certified public
acceunting firm even though it is not required by New York State Law.  This practice has been complied

with and the independent auditors’ opinion s included in the report.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada awarded a
Certificate of Achieverent for Excelience in Financial Reporting to the County of Rockland, New York for
its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1886, The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for

preparation of state and local government financial reports.

in order to be awarded z Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to
program standards. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable

legal requirements,
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for & period of one year only. We believe our current report

cortinues to conform {o the Certificate of Achievernent program requirements, and we are submitting # ©

GFOA to deterrmine its sligibility for another certificate.

il
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Preparation of this report on a timely basis could not be accomplished without the efficient and
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department. | should like to express my appreciation
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Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

County of Rockland,
New York

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 1996

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
govermment units and public employee retirernent
systerns whose comprehensive annual financial
reports {CAFRSs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

" Executive [irector

®vif
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BKSY ) BENNETT KIELSON STORCH YABLON & DESANTIS LLP
Certified Public Accountants

LES STORCH

Davin AL YaBios
NICHOLAS DIESANTIS
STUART S STENGEL
DHosENic K CONSGLO
Baror L Brasak

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT Sesan L FriEno

To the Monorabile Legisiature of the
County of Rockland, New York:

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the County of Rockiand,
New York as of and for the year ended December 31, 1997 as listed in the
accompanying table of contents. These general purpose financial statements are the
responsibility of the County's management, Our responsibility s to express an opinion
on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Home and Infirmary Fund (Enterprise Fund). We also
did not audit the financial statements of the Rockland County Industrial Development
Agency (a component unit) for the year ended December 31, 1997 which represents
03% and .02% respectively, of the assets and revenues and other financing sources
of the component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors
whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion on the general
purpose financial statements insofar as it relates to amounts included for the
enterprise fund and the Industrial Development Agency in the component unit
columns, is based on the reports of the other auditors,

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing
Standards, ssued by the Comptroller Generai of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the general purpose financial statements are free of matenal misstatement,
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also inciudes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overail general purpose financiai statement
presentation. We believe that cur audit and the reports of the other auditors provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In cur opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the general
purpese financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the County of Rockiand, New York, at December 31, 1897
and the results of its operations and cash flows of its proprietary fund types for the
year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated BMay 8, 1988 on our consideration of the County of Rockland's intemal control
over financial reporting and our fests of s compliance with laws, regulations,
contracts and grants.

Oy BaRKeR AVENUE ® WHITE Prams, NEWw YORK 106011303 e (914 421-3600 » Fax (9143 421-5099
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Our audit was made for the purpese of forming an opinion on the general purpose
financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying financial information listed
as combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules in the table of
contents 18 presented for the purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the general purpose financial statements of the County of Rockland, New
York. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the generai purpose financial statements and, in our opinion and the opinion
of the other auditors. is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the
general purpose financial statements taken as a whole. The information listed in the
statistical section of the table of contents has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in our audit of the general purpose financial statements and
accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Bennstt Kiclion Stonch (obion & DeSantis £LFP

May 8, 1998

BESYD
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPOMNENT UNITS

DECEMBER 31, 1997
(witn Comparative Totals for 1996)

ASSETS
Cash and Equivalents
Irvestments

Investment of Employees’ Deferred
Compensation, at market vaiue

Taxes Feceivable, net of aliowance for
uncolectible taxes

Cther Receivables:
Accounts
Accounis - Patient care
Loans and tuition
State and Federal aig
Due from other governmenis
Due from component unit
Due from other funds

Atlowance for uncollectible amounts

Frepaid Expenditures/Expenses
Irventones

Fixed Assets
Accumulated Depreciation

Hastricied Assets
Armount Available in Debt Service Fund

Amount to be Provided for General
Long-Term Debi

Totat Assels

Governmental Funds

. Proprigtary Funds

Special Debt Capital
. General _Revenue Service Projects ~ Enterprise
23972572 0% 932418 1037395 § 18790543 3 4 700.874
- 10.510.000 14380,134 24528000 -
31.678,122 . - - -
11630 603 2749207 212,971 - 569,383
- . . . 14 111 583
. 738 329 - - .
&7 1385 545 G949 715 I35 BEY 1,437 761 -
% 348 065 - - -
- . B40 500 -
- 1,422,316 BB 877 - 5.123.525
54 164,704 3,389,570 1,480 535 1.437.761 19 804 461
(442 156) - - - {2,944 237}
63,722,508 3,389,570 1,480 535 1437781 16,860,254
169,321 L..28472 - (452419
- - . 307,106
- - 47 B83,204
e {28 583,202)
T - - 21,100,002
______________________________________ - 3493155
$ 119542523 § 14856460 § 16898064 § 48240459

intemal
Service
$ 3825858

...18,855,000

493,030
47,952
§7.146

4,405,061
5,043,189

5,043,188

15,858
100,807

5.364,287
(2,618,482}

3,745,805

$ 43420655 § 32586416



Jucsary
“unds

ust and
gency

i.372.810

882,122

254,832

- Account Groups
General General
Fixed Long-Term

Assets  Debt

&3
i
&R

Totals
{Memorangum
~ Dnily)

FPrimary
Government

£7.632.471

..89.273,134

62 882,122

31878122

13,184,684
14,111,583
738,329
49,910,861
5485211
840,000
11,039,682

875,155 717

875,155,717

95,320.250

. (3.386.433;
_ 91,833,817
. 561,868

... 408,013

728,203,208
128,201,684}

700,001,524
3.493,155

15,931,007

15,831,007

- 113,021,576

113,021,576

Component
_ dnits

58808071

...4,300,000

140,071
1,422,732
499 264
3878

458 378
2524 063
(1,054,713}
1,469 350

L2938

12.603.218

19,603,218
22,130,353

Totals

Reporting tntity
... \Memorandum Only)

18987

§ 54440542 §

1986

75872,79C,

$ 675,155,717 § 128,952,583 § 1,146916800 § 54313931

13573134 46,781 197
52,882,122 51,738,954
31,678,122 47 0B4 589
13,324,755 12,900,382
14,111,583 13,921,246

2.161,061 1,764,515
50,410,065 46,007 458

5 498, 88 5.343 885
840,000 *,215.000
11,497 960 12,747,705
97,844,313 94,900,301
4,441, 146] L (3.863.811)
..93,403,167 ..31,236 480
..BB4 807 ....510,606
408,013 330,269

748 806 426 721,817,185

(29.201684)  (27.378,331)

719,604,742 694,438,864
75,623 506 32,022,006
15,931,007 15,143,704

113,021,576 100,520,145

$ 1,201,230,740 ¢ 1158579515

{Continued:



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMBINED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNTY GROUPS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONERT UNITS

DECEMBER 371, 1997

{With Comparative Totals for 1896)

LEABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and retamned percentages
Acorued Habilities
Emplovee payrolt deductions
Deposits
Due to refirement system
[ue to other governments
Due to schoot distnicts
Due to primary government
Due to other funds
Deferred revenuss - Taxes
Deferred revenues - Other
Deferred compensation payable to employees
Bond interest and matured bonds payable
Revenue anticipation note payable
Bond anticipation notes payabie
Bonds payable

Total Liabilities

Equity and Cther Credits:
fnvestrnent in general fixed assets
Contributed capial
Retained sarmngs
Fund balances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for prepaid expenditures
Reserved for law enforcement
Reserved for STOP - DWI Program
Reserved for £911
Reserved for long-term recavable
Reserved for social service programs
Reserved for debt service
Reserved for student ioans
Reserved for parkliands
Unreserved:
Designated for affordable housing
Designated for Section 8
Designated for transportation projects
Designated for subsecuent
years expenditures
Undesignated

Totat Equity and Other Credits

Total Liabilities, Equity and Other Credils

. General

116817703
18,862,481

1,318,386
14,394 052

B.228 725
15,503,330
453 087

158,000,000

85,377,754

800,102
169,321
162,550
106,794
171,585

892,474

5,500,000

_.47.188,523

34,164,758

Governmental Funds

Special Debt
Revenue Service
$ 1805815 % -
1.767 853 4 054
781 124 -
- 326 BOR
4 154 887 335587
701,301 -
24 472 -
72813 631,455
- 15,931,007
225000 -

1,329,571

_B348 311 -
10,701,568 16,562,502

The scoompanying notes are an integral part of the financiad statements

[¥3]

&

Capital

_Projects

2. BO8 1358

230,568

TAL 412

6,800,000

10,578,115

4,862,081

194,000

3,941,408

28,572,855

37870344

Propretary Funds

Internal

Enterprise Service
£ 17688682 ¢ 2465938
12.583.378 18.035 148
1,731,802 541,620
1,006,438 .
- 2,046,265
15,491
12,184 569 4448710
L 293684877 27558176
- 131341
4 896,889

14,055,978

L IAUE5ETE . 5028240
$ 32586416

$ 119542503 § 14856460 § 16898064 § 48249450 § 43420653




Fgugiary
Funds

Trust and
Agency

T2E75
2.998.036

11787

22,178

52,882,122

67 185,780

...88.182

$.67.25493¢

Acoount Groups

 Generat General
Fixed Long-Term
Assets - Dett
: 3 -
- 4,539.362
124413 271

- 128952583

B675.185 717 -

. B15.185,717 -

“Totals
{Memorandum
Oy

Primary
Gavernment

b 26.268 383
51257 812
72675
2,598,636

6812 584
3825183

14,394 052

11,038,582
15,503,330
1249702
62.882,122
326,508
15,000,000
6.800.000

..353,478,549

575,155,717
131,341
4,856 859

5,463 484
193,793
152,550
109,794
171,595
TG4 408

98,152
15,831,007

194 000
225,000
92474
3,541,408

§.829.671
78,146,067

793,438 260

$ 1,146516.809

Componant
Umis

§ 3678397
3,034 086

1,360 280

B46. 000
458 378

3762311

333735888

... 46,845,240

7,244 523

135638

288330
... B88,891

$ 54313931

Totals

Reporting Entity
- (Memorandum Only)

1997 .

$ 23,944780
54,261,998
72,675
2.999.038
6812 584
5.125,543
14,364 052
840 000
11,497,960
15,503,330
5.012.013
62,882,122
326.508
15.000.000
£.800,000
174,621,188

400,123,788

675,185,717
131,341
12,141,822

6,463 484
13793
152.550
108,764
171,585
704,408

58,152
15,831,007
135,638
194 000

225608
82,474
3,841 408

6,828 571
| 78434,197

|.B01.106,551

5

L S

18,154,088
56 428 506
54, 250
3.135244
3.227 150G
8.230.087
16,6894 173
1,215,000
12,747 705
20,800 327
4883321
51,738,954
78,728
15.600.000
20.026.000

(170,151,434

402,569,938

650,114,566
131,341
5,432,180

2,837 558
394 252
92270
133,872

1,123,082
89 8086
15,662,758
137,778
194 000

225,000
g2.474
3,941,408

2,824,036
63.583,195

L I57.008 67T

§.1.201.230.740 8 1,159,579.615



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES, EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED

COMPOMNENT UNIT
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1997

(Mith Comparative Totals for 1996)

Revenues:
Real properly taxes
Other tax tems
Non-property taxes
Departmental incoms
Use of money and property
Licenses and permis
Fines ang forfeitures
Sale of property and compensation for loss
Interfund revenues
Siate aid
Federal aid
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government support
Education
Pubhc safety
Heatth
Transportation
Economic opporiurity and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Employee benefits

Debt Service:
Principat
interest

Capital Cutiay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Ciher Financing Sources {Uses)
Proceeds from serial bonds
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Operating transfers ouf - Component unit

Total Other Fingncing
Sources (Uses)

Excess iDeficiency) of Revenues
and Gther Sources Over Expend-
tures and Other Uses

Fund Batances - Beginning of Year
Residguat Equity Transfer

Fund Batances - End of Year

Governmentai Funds

Special Debt Capital
General _ Revenue Service Projects
§ 53370206 % 15703207 % 5 -
6,519,596 - - -
82,200,180 - - -
22 031,470 125575 - -
1,844,825 1,224 268 2.508.902 -
775,771 20813 - -
617,186 10.609 - -
20,579 36,500 - -
3,847,385 156,068 - -
60,391,438 743,573 2,134 881 1785718
29,058,179 4.368,867 270,567 3,434 696
1,631,066 B21.413 575,448 663
462,317 401 23,180,993 5,800,848 §,221077
26,351,172 - - -
17,668,155 - - -
29,035,303 - -
22,785 864 - - -
14,060,734 7873180 - -
102,370,797 4 113,872 - -
503,038 - -
3,358,811 8,172.043 -
658,668 1,150,081 -
- - 12,708,224
867 508 259200 5672877 -
....................................... T . 16.440,091
217682209 22568376 19381101 16440091
44,635,192 612617 (13490253}  (f1.219.0%4)
- - - 13,896.000
4,842,130 8617168 19.605,.818 597.500
(23.B85,872) {7,857 079} (6,268,794} {733,121
At : - :
(30,120512y 960,080 13,337,025 13,760,364
14,514 880 1572707 {153,228} 2.541 355
19,478 485 9,128,861 16,715,730 34,846,409
171594 . - 182.580

$..34.166759 § 10701568 §

16,562,502 § 37.670,344

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements



Totals Totals
Fiductary {Memugarandum Component Reporing Enfity
Funds Vol oo Hnit (Memcrandum Only
Soil ang Water
Expendable Primary Conservation
 Trust Covernment  Listrict tea7 .19%
£ 3 6£5082413 % - 5 689082413 % 71514319
- 6.515,596 - 6,519,996 £ 357 451
“ 82,200,190 - 82 200,190 75,554 316
20,034 22.177.079 77 461 22,254 540 21432821
2,993 5,582,088 321 5882 400 5492792
- 796684 - 706 684 791,048
- 627795 - 527,795 492 366
- 57074 - 57,074 36,777
- 4 003 453 - 4,003,463 3647 471
- 56025607 10,691 65 036 558 57 756,838
- 37,132,342 2.500 37,134 812 34,351,588
- 3,028,640 3.489 3032129 2761474
23027 296633346 94762 296.728.108  290,177.402
- 263511472 - 26351 172 26,086 813
- 17,669,155 - 17,668,156 17TEY 342
- 28035303 - 29,035.303 28,503 784
- 22 765864 - 22,765 864 22 B48 319
- 21933974 21,933,974 21,828,753
13,684 106,498,350 - 106,488,350 103,438 408
- 503,036 - 503,036 905 101
- 12,530,854 78518 12.509.470 11,850,919
- 1.849.750 - 1,849 750 1,686,581
- 12,708 224 - 12,708,224 11,605,840
- 7,798 585 - 7,799 585 8,936 896
- 16 440 099 - 16,440,081 17 270,776
13681 276,085458 78.516 276,163,674 272823558
9346 20547888 16,246 20564134 17353.844
- 13.856,0G0 - 13,896.000 6,365,000
- 33,782,518 - I3 762 618 31,541,048
- (38,524 875 - {38 524 876} (38,482 241}
(11,196,770) - 11196770} (10,687,900)
- {2 063 028} - {2.0683.028y (11,144 095)
g,348 18,484 860 15,248 18,501 108 6,208 748
89.808 80,359 291 1,702 80,360,893 74,151 244
- ... 354,174 - 354,174 g
5 99,152 § 9919832% § 17948 99 216,273 % 80360993




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL, SPECIAL REVENUE AND DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
YEARENDED DECEMBER 31, 1967

Revenues:
Real property taxes
Other tax dems
Non-property {axes
Departmental income
Use of money and property
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Sale of property and compen-

sation for loss

imterfund revenues
State aid
Federal aid
Miscellansous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Currant
General government support
Education
Publc safety
Heatth
Transportation
Economic opporiunity
and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community
Services
Employee benefits
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Rev-
enues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Operating transfers out - Component unit

Total Other Financing
Sources (Lises)

Excess (Deficiency) of Rev-
enues and Other Sources
Over Expenditures and
Other Uses

Fund Balances - Beginning
of Year

Residual Equity Transfer

Furnd Batances - End of Year

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds

- $ 34164759 § 34,164 759

“atiance Variance

Revised Favorabig Revised Favorable
Budget Actual - Unfavorable)  Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
4B 126708 % 53378206 § 5252498 % 18413107 % 15703207 % 290,100
& 440 000 5515 996 78,936 - - .
79,280,000 82,200,190 2,916,190 - - -
22.917 086G 22,031 470 (885,598 35006 125 575 80,5675
1418 220 1,844 925 426 705 700.000 1.224 268 524288
795,000 775774 (19,229 10,750 20,913 10,183
834 072 617,188 B3 114 15 GO0 10,608 (4351
21,500 20,579 (G213 13,308 36,500 23,192
3844 191 3,847 365 3204 219,000 156 068 (62,932
64,904 536 605,381 438 (4 513,088 992,926 713573 (279 353
34 231 847 28058178 (5,173,768} 4,685,250 4 368 B&7 (316 383
A0 4B 18310686 180,582 276,764 821413 544 678
L2B3983727 262317401 (1646326) 22361125 23180993 819866
28,083 215 26351472 2,732,043 273,168 - 273188
19,014 382 17 668,158 1,345 237 - - .
31,507 855 29,035,303 2472 552 - - -
24 B65 079 22.765 864 2099 215 - - -
14,060,794 14,060,764 & ETT 815 7873180 804 735
112,401,353 102,370,787 10,030,556 4 314 452 4113.872 200 580
548 037 503,038 43 001 - - -
3433487 3.358.911 74 576 10,538,528 G 172,043 1.366 485
726.291 589 669 26622 1,407,900 1,150 081 2578189

.. .B87.500 g7 508 189992 259,200 258,200
236,656,003 217682208 19013794 25,471,164 22,568,378 2,902,788
27,267,724 44835192 17367468 (3110039, 612817 3722658
4,955 450 4,542 130 {13,320 8643078 8617 1688 (25809
(24,350 644) {23,865 872} 484 772 (7.683.753) {7 857 075 32674
(11,276,336  (11.196,770) g2%86 T T -
{30,674,530) (30120512 554018 953325 Lseuoen BB
{3,406 806) 14,514 B80 17,921,486 (2.156.714} 1572707 3,728,421
34408 806 19,478 485 16,071,678 2186 714 9,128 B&1 5,972 147
LdT1594 171,594 - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financia! statements.



_ Debt Service Fund - .. Jotals (Memorandum Only)
Variance Wariance
Revised Favorabie Revised Favorable
Budge! Actual {Unfavorable} Budget Actuat  {Unfavorable)
3 kY - % - 63539815 § 6BY90B2413 § 5542538
- - - §.440 000 6519596 79 956
- - - 79 290,000 82,200,180 2910130
- - - 24.952 06Y F2157 45 {785 0243
. 2.80%8.902 2808902 2118220 5,679 085 38680875
- - - BO5 750 796,684 (9.066}
- - 548 072 627 785 TBTE3
- - - 34 BOB 57079 22,271
- - 4,083 191 4 003,463 (5%,728)
2,134 881 2,154 881 65 887 462 653,238,852 (2 B57 570}
- 270,567 270,567 38,917 187 33,897 613 {5319 584}
88 557 575 498 486 341 _ 1.805825 3,027 577 1,222,152
a8 557 5 840 B48 5,802 291 286,413,408 281,389 247 4 875 B33
28,356 384 26,351,172 3008212
- - - 19,014 397 17,868 155 1,345 237
- - - 31,507 855 29035303 2472 552
- . - 24 B85 078 22 765 BB4 2089215
- - - 2. TR T0u 133474 BO4 735
- - - 116,715 805 106 484 669 10,231,138
- - - 546,037 503 036 43,001
- - - 13872 0545 12,530,954 1,441 0614
- - - 2,134 191 1,845 750 284 441
12,708 573 12708224 34% 12, 708573 12,708,224 349
6705837 BET2877 32960  BO22537 7799585 722952
19412410 18381101 33308 281581577 259631686 21,949,891
{19,328 853y (13480253 5835 600 4,831,832 31,757 556 26,825,724
19 427 947 19805819 177872 33,026,475 33,165,118 138,843
(8,235,400 (6,268 754} (33,3047 (38,275,797 (37,791,745 484 082
e S - MA1278338) (11,186,770 82,568
13.192 547 13,337,625 144 478 (16 528.658) (15823397 705251
(8.133.308) (153 228) 5980678 {11,686 B26) 15834 159 27 B30 885
5,133.308 16715730 10,582 424 11,696,826 45 323078 33,628 250
- - - 17154 171594

§ 18562502 § 16562502 §

- $ 61428829 § 61428829
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES ARD CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY
ALL PROPRIETARY FUNDS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

YEAR EMDED DECEMBER 31, 1897
(With Comparative Totals for 1556}

Operating Revenues
harges for services
E-911surcharge
Miscellaneous

Totat Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Administrative and general expenses
Salanes and wage expenses
Judgments and claims
Pension and employee benefits
Supplies and cther expanses
Depreciation
Purchases and sfores
Data processing
E-911
Mail
Communications
Reproduction

- Housekeeping
Heaith comples matenals
Secunty
Utiity plant
Grounds
Automotive
taintenance
Provision for bad debis

Tolal Operating Expenses
Income (Loss) From Operations
Hon-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
State ad
interest mcome
interest on indebtedness

Total Mon-Operating Income
{Expensas}

Nef income (Loss) Before Operaling

Transfers
Operating Transfers in
Net income

Fund Balance/Retained Carnings -
Beginning of Year

Residuat Equity Transfer
Fund Balance/Retained Earrings -
End of Year
Contributed Capital - Beginning of Year
Add: Transfer in
Coniributed Cagital - End of Year
Totat Equity ~ End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

Totals
(Memorandum  Component
.. Only) Units
—
Enterprise Service Primary
_ Fund Funds  Government
$ 6409903563 § 47898011 § 112BBY364 § 4538967
- 566, 648 566 848 -
1,987 665 81717 2068382
 8B.O78.018 48547578 115505504 4938962
10,028,260 1,511 024 11,638,284 -
33,517,980 68,659 33,586,639 100.025
- 2177061 2177 061 -
11,280,071 27 B13,358 39103430 14 824
7 697679 - 7,887 679 ZATI 083
1.677 007 ah4 734 2631 741 -
- 148 346 146, 348 -
- 3517 714 3817714 -
- 432771 432771 -
- GS8 587 698,587 -
- 1,315,267 1,315,267 -
- 388,032 388,032 -
- 1,768,872 17689 572
- 204,238 204 238 -
- 1,871,108 1671108 -
- 2,012,488 2.012.488 -
- 317,856 317 856 -
- 427366 427 365 .
- 2,028,188 2,028,188
3334772 - 3334772 _
67,545 768 47 454 368 115,000 137 2,287 932
(567.751) 1,093,208 525457 2851030
- 55858 55 858 105,418
- g71.027 971,027 2,096 614
487551 TSR3y (850,550} .
(475,513) 851,848 378,335 2.202.033
{1,043 264} 1,945 068 961,792 4853063
4,707 068 55 130 4,762 258 -
3683 804 2.000.248 5684 050 4 853083
103,382,174 3068 247 13,460 421 2391 860
- (171584 (171584) -
14,055 978 4 846 859 18,382,877 7,244 923
- 131,341 131,344
S 131,347 131,347
$ 14065978 § 5028240 § 19084218 § 7244923
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Totals
Reporting Entity
{Memorandumn Only;

1997 1996

§ 117 B2B.326 § 112182012
556,848 543 785
2069382 2069553
120,454 556 114,775,360
11,538,284 12204 258
33,686,564 31 B85 815
2477 061 85 255
38,118 254 40 681874
4 870762 B 845 192
2,631,741 1,871 646
146 346 1,024 588
3,817 714 3,648 445
432771 363704
698 587 710,002
1315 287 1,292 379
IBB 032 480,548
17689 572 1,736,601
204 238 311,542
1,671,106 1,582 459
2,012,488 20331477
317 .B5& 411,237
427 366 402,178
2,028,188 1,799.072
3334772 2210821
117,288,089 113,351 535
3,176 487 1,423.825
161.277 194 900
3,087 6414 1,269.870
(650,550 {508,997
2578368 957.773
5754 B55 2381 558
4762258 8821135
10,517 113 G 202 783
15852 28 5,640 488
(171,594) _
26197800 15852281
131 341 -

- 131,341

131,341 131,341

§ 26329141 § 15983622
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COUNRTY OF ROCKLAND, KEW YORK
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CABH FLOWS

ALL PROPRIETARY FUNDS AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1967
{With Comparative Totals for 18%6)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
income (losst from operations

Adjustments o reconcile mcome (loss) from aperations

ta net cash provided by operating
achvities:

Enterprise
JFung

Internal
Service
CFunds

3 (56775 B 1.093.208

Totals

(Memarandury  Component

... Only} Linits
Prirmary

LGovemnment

§ 525457 & 2651030

Degreciation and amortization tE7T 00T 145 346 1,823,353
Provision for bad debis 3334772 . 3334772
Chianges in operating assels and habdites:
Accounts receivabile 270087 (217 005 53.082
Accounts recewabls - Patient care (3.198.818; - {3199 818}
State and Federal aid receivable - (23,16%) {23,169
Due from other governments - (57 973 {57.973) -
Prepaid expenses {279,538} 2T B8 {251.721% {2,939
inventones (B7 268} (16,476} (77,7443 -
Accaunts payable 286,808 1,378,082 1,674 681 1,033,523
Accrued kabilities 1162718 (1.236,248) (73,5303 10651
Due (o retirement system 218,567 264 810 484 477 -
Due to other governments (2,648 4200 - (2646 420} -
Deferred revenues 4983 4,983 -
nNet Cash Provided by
Operating Activities 189 964 1,370,476 1,570,440 3,682,265
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
interest income 971,027 971,027 2,080,435
Proceeds from sale of mvestments 12,470,000 12.470.000 -
Furchase of investments (188550000 (19,B55,000)
Net Cash Provided by (LUsed in
investing Activities ((BATZETE (B413873) 2,090,435
Cash Flows From Capifat and Related
Financing Activitigs:
Grart received from other government - 55,858 §5.858 185 982
Repayment of notes {1,235.000) - {1.235.000% .
issuance of long-term debt 1,918,000 4,000,064 52100600 -
Retiremant of long-term debt {1,83554%; - 11,635,543} (7RG 2485
Deposits to restricted assets - - -
Proceeds from restnicied assets - - 2.650.802
Interest on ingebledness {565,132y (565,132} -
Acguisttion and construction of
capital asseis {1,398 516} {3.449,138) (4,848,654) (5.512,305)
Capitalized interest - - - {1.630.120}
Repayment to primary govermment . {375,000
Net Cash Provided by (Used in} Capital ang
Related Financing Activities (2925.191) 608720 (5.429,887)
Cash Flows From Non-Capital
Financing Activities:
Residual equity transfer - (171,504} (171,534
Due from other funds (2,098 970 5,328,570 3,230,600
Due to other funds {83 620 {53.523)
Uperating fransfers in 4,707 068 5% 190 4 762 258
Retrement of long-feam delt (188773 {43 4804 {233,235
irterest on indebtedness (154 0483 (182,888 (308,330}
Met Cash Provided by
Non-Capital Financing Activities £.484 277 4,583 307 7827 578
Net increase (Decreass) n Cash
and Eguivalents (460,950} 526 524 85574 352,813
Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year 5161824 3299338 2230415
Cash and Equivalends - Eng of Year $ 4700874 § 3825859 % 2,583 228

Reconciliation of Component Unit's Cash:
Cash and Cash Eguivalents at End of Year

Goverrmmental Fund Types 3 B 448
Proprietary Fund Types 2,583,228
Community College 4,216,388

$_B.BO8LTY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Totals
Haporting Entity
iMemorandum Only)

THYT 19496

$ 378487 3 1423825

1823.353 1871546
3334 772 7210921
53,082 288553
(34858187 (3,401,354
(23,169 (24,783
{57673} 23832
(254 660] (32,515
177 744) 58671
2708214 168.16G
(52879} 2285427
484 477 (45 658
(25464207 (1836530
4983 (1.012)

5.262.705 2.886.087

1061462 1.263.372
12 470,000 4.080.000
(198650007 (12.470.006G

{4.323.538; (7,126,628}

251,840 54,740
1,235,000} -
5910.000 35,558,138
(2,384,789} {4.514 805;

- (24,781 158;
2850802 -
(565132} (479,665}

(10.360.955) 17,266,783

(16301207 (3.247.472)
(375.000) (350,000}

(7.745358)  (5.027.00%

(171.504) .
3,230 800 (5,042 898)
(53.523) 127 455

4 762258 6,821,195
(233233 {223.004)
(306530)  (205604)

7227578 1,327.230

ATE387  (7.940.314)
10.691.574 18,631,888
$ 11,109,961 § 10,691.574



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL FUNDS
COMMUNITY COLLEGE FUND (COMPONENT UNIT)
YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1887
(With Comparative Totals for 1996)

.. Lurrent Funds

Loan

Unrestricted  Restricted  Fund
Revenues - Educational and general $ 25655445 § 4954319 % 582
Expenditures - Educational and general 36,994 .751 4,954 319 2722
Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures (11,339,306} - {2,140
Other - Operating transfers in - Primary government 11,196,770 - -
Net Decrease in Fund Balance {142 538) - (2,140}
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year L 412718 - 187778
Fund Balance - End of Year £ 270182 - % 135,638

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the financial statements.
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$

~ Totals

g9r

30610346 3
41,851,792
(11,341,446)
11,196,770
(144 676

_..250,496

1996

30,692,596
41,779,579

(11,086,983}

...10.687,900

(399,082
949,579

409820 §

550496
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER CHANGES

COMMUNITY COLLEGE FUND (COMPONENT UNIT)
YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 1687
(With Comparative Totals for 1996)

Hevenues:
Educational and General:
Student revenues
Other revenies
Federat and State sponsored granis
Revenues in lieu of local sponsor grant

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Educational and General:

Instructional and departmentat research
Sponsored resaarch and other programs
Libraries
Extension and public service
Student services and programs
Student wages
Academic support
Maintenance and operation of piant
Scholarships and feliows
General administration and instifutional services
Employee benefits

Total Expenditures
Deficiency of Revenues Over Expendifures
Other - Operating transfers in - Primary government

Deficiency of Revenues and Other
Sources Over Expenditures

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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~ Current Funds

Unrestricted

Restricted

11023516 %

2,555,263
8,573 268
2,497,398

898,279
4,855,040

25,655 445

4,954 319

13,865,936
354,970
786,219
2,846,524

623,199
3.738,655
6,742,182
8,036,066

36,994,751

¥

(11,338,306}

864,800

231,632

3,857 887

4,954 319




Totals

1997 1ese
$ 11023516 $ 11559628
2,654 542 2,359,163
14,434 308 14667863
2497398 2105470
30,609,764 30,692,124
13,865,936 12,735,788
864,800 952,214
354,970 348,407
786,219 824 467
2.846,524 2542927
231,632 228,269
623,199 365,192
3.736,655 4,072,364
3,857,887 3,959,437
6,742,182 8,137,584
8,039,066 7:612,930
41,949,070 41,779,579
(11,339.306)  (11.087.455)
11196770 10,687,900
$ (142536} $ (399 555)
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

EISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

COMBIMING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1957 {(Rockiand Community College as of August 31, 18873

ASSETS

Cash and Equivalents
Invesiments

Recerables:
Accounts receivable
Loans and tuition
State and Federal aid
Due from other govemments
Due from cther funds

Allowance for unicollectible amounts

Frapaid Expenses

Fixed Assets:
Land
Construction -in-progress

Restrcied Assels

Total Assets

LIABILITIES ANR EQUITY

Liabilittes:
Accounts payable and retained percentages
Accrued lighilities
Due 10 other governments
Due to primary government
Due o other funds
Deferred revenues
Bonds payable

Total Liabilities
Equty:
Retained Earnings
Fund Balance:
Reserved for student loans
Unreserved and undesignated
Total Equity

Total Liatwhties and Equity

Soit and Solid
Rockiand Water Waste Industrial
Commurity  Conservation  Management Development
Coltege District Authority Agency Totais

$ 4216385 % 8448 & 2564408 § 18822 3 BEBOBOTY
4 300 000 - - 4,300,000
121,807 - 18 464 - 140,071

1 422,732 - - - t422,732
384,235 10.500 B4 469 - 499 204
3,678 - - - 31678
458,378 - - 458,378
2,400 830 10,500 112,833 - 2,524 063
(1,054,713 - - . (1,054,713}
1,345,817 10,500 112,833 - 1,469 350
- 2,939 - 2,939

- 589,636 - 589 638

- - 19.013,582 - 19,013,582

- - 19,603,218 - 19,603,218

- - 22,130,383 - 22,130, 353
$_6862312 % IB.348 § 44413849 % 18.822 § 54313931
3 983717 % - % 2692680 % - % 3678387
2,951,706 1,000 §1,380 - 3,034,086
1,300,380 - - - 1,300,380

! . 840,000 - 840,000

458,378 - - - 458 378
3762311 - - 3762311

- 33573 688 - 33 573 688

9,456,492 1,000 37,1B7.748 - 45845240

- 7,226,101 18,822 7244923

135638 - 135,638
270,182 17.948 - - 288 130
408 B20 17,948 7226 108 18,822 7568 631

$ a2 3 18948 § 44 413840 & 18822 % 54313831

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial slatements.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN RETAINED EARNINGS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,1897

Operating Revenues -
Charges for services

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and wage expenses
Pension and emplovee benefits
Supplies and other expenses
Total Operating Expenses

income {Loss) From Cperations

Mon-Operating Revenuses (Expenses):

interest income
State aid

Total Non-Cperating Income
Netf tncome (Loss)

Retained Earnings -
Beginning of Year

Retained Earmnings -
£nd of Year

Sciid
Waste industrial
Management Development
Adthorty - Agency  Totals
$ 4828710 3 10252 $ 4938962
85025 11,000 100,025
12,386 2,438 14,824
2188546 6,537 2,173,083
. 2,267,857 18875 | 2,287,832
2,660,753 (8,723} 2,651,030
2,085,996 518 2,096 614
105,419 - 105419
2,201,415 618 2,202,033
4,862,168 (5,105) 4,853,063
2,363,933 27,827 2.391.860
$ 7226101 § 18822 § 7244923

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COUNTY OF ROCKILAND, NEW YORK

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNMITS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997

Solid
Waste industriai
Management Development
Authority  Agency  Totals
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
income (loss} from operations $ Z2BBOT7RI § (8,723 $ 2651030
Adjustments to reconcile income {loss) from operations
to net cash provided by (used in} operating
activities:
Prepaid expenses (2,939 - {2,838
Accounts payable 1,033,523 - 1,033,523
Accrued liabilities 13,651 . 10.651
Net Cash Provided by (Lised in}
Operating Activities 3,701,988 {9723 3,692 265
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
interest income 2,088,817 618 2090435
Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities:
Grant received from other government 195,882 - 195,882
Retirement of long-term debt (755 246} - (759 246}
Proceeds from restricted assets 2,650,802 - 2,650,802
Acquisition and construction of
capital assets {5,512,305) - (5,512,305}
Capitalized interest {1.630,120) - (1,830,120
Repayment to primary government {375,000} - (375,000}
Net Cash Used in Capital and
Related Financing Activities (5429 ,887) - (5423 887)
Met Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Equivalents 361,918 {8.105) 352813
Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year 2,202,488 27,827 2,230,415
Cash and Equivalents - End of Year $ 2564406 % 18,822 & 2,583,228

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1897

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The County of Rockland, New York was established in 1798 and operates in accordance with its
charter, County Law and the various other applicable jaws of the State of New York. The County functions
under a County bxecutive/Legisiature form of government. The County Legislature is the legislative body
responsible for overaill operation of the County. The County Executive serves as the chief executive officer
and the Comrmissioner of Finance serves as the chief financial officer. The County provides the foliowing
services to its residents:  education, public safety, heaith, transportation, economic opportunity and
development, culture and recreation, home and community services and general and administrative
support.

The accounting policies of the County of Rockland, New York conform to generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to governmental units and the Uniform System of Accounts as
prescribed by the State of New York. The Govermmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The following is a summary of the County's more significant accounting policies:

A, Financial Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government which is the County of
Rockland, b) organizations for which the County is financially accountable and ¢} other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the County are such
that exciusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misieading or incomplete
as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14,

in evaluating how to define the County, for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the
County's reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASE Statement No. 14,
including legal standing, fiscal dependency and financial accountability. Based upon the application
of the above criteria, the following individual component units are included in the County’s reporting
entity because of their operational relationship with the County.

The Rockland County Community College was established in 1959 with the County of
Rockland as the local sponsor under provisions of Article 126 of the Education Law. The Coliege is
administered by a board of trustees consisting of nine voting members; five are appointed by the
County Legislature and four by the Governor. The College budget is subject to the approval of the
County Legislature. The County provides one-half of the capital costs and one-third of the
operating costs for the Coliege. Title fo real property of the College vests with the County and
bonds and notes for College capital costs are issued by the County and are County debt. A fiscal
year ending August 31st is mandated by State Law for the College. The College is included in the
County's reporting entity since the primary government is able to impose is will, as demonstrated
through the ability {o approve budgets. The College may also result in a financial burden to the
primary govemment since the County is obligated for the debt of the College. Since services are not
provided entirely or aimost entirely o the County, the College has been reflected as a discretely
presented component unit.

The Rockland County Industrial Development Agency is a public benefit corporation created
by State legisiation to promote the economic welfare, recreation opportunities and prosperity of the
County's inhabitants. Members of the Agency are appointed by the County Legislature. Agency

members have complete responsibifity for management of the Agency and accountability for fiscal
22 '



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued}
DECEMBER 31, 1987

Mote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

matters. The County is not liable for Agency bonds or notes. The goveming board of the Agency
serves at the pieasure of the County Legisiature and therefore, the primary government is able to
impose its will on the Agency. Since the Agency does not provide services entirely or almost
entirely to the County of Rockland, the financial statements of the Agency have been reflected as a
discretely presented component unit.

The Rockland County Soil and Water Conservation District was established pursuant o
MNew York State Soil Conservation District Law and legisiative resolution.  The District provides for
the conservation of soil and soil rescurces of the State and the County. The Board of Direciors ars
appointed by the County Legisiature. The Board of Directors serve at the pleasure of the County
Legislature and therefore, the primary government is able to impose its will on the District. The
District is alsc dependent on the financial support provided by the County.  Since the District does
not provide services entirely or almost entirely 1o the County, the financial statements of the District
have been reflected as a discretely presented component unii.

The Rockland County Solid Waste Management Authority is a public benefit corporation
created pursuant to the Rockiand County Solid Waste Management Authonty Act constituting Title
13-M of the New York State Public Authorities Law. The Authorty provides solid waste
management services to the residents of the County. The Authority is administered by fifteen
members. Eight members are members of the County Legisiature, five members are supervisors of
towns within the County and two members are appointed by the County Executive and therefors the
County is considered able {o impose its will on the Agency. Authority members have complete
responsibility for management of the Authority and accountability for fiscal matters. The Authority
has the power {o issue debt and enter into lcan agreements. The County is not liable for the
Authonty’s debt. Since the Authority does not provide services entirely or almost entirely to the
County, the financial statements of the Authorty have been reflected as a discretely presented
component unit.

Financial statements for the component units are included as part of the general purpose
financial statements. Complete financial sistements can be oblained from thewr respective
administrative offices at the following addresses;

Rockiand Community College
145 College Hoad
Suffern, New York 10801

Rockiand County industrial Deveiopment Agency
One Blue Hill Plaza
Pearl River, New York 10965

Rockland County Soil and Water Conservation District
23 New Hempstead Road
New City, New York 10856

Rockland County Solid Waste Management Authority

4 Route 340
Orangeburg, New York 10862
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1887

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

B.

Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the County are organized and operated on the basis of funds and account
groups. A fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts
which comprise is assets. liabiliies, fund balancesiretained earnings, revenues and
expenditures/expenses., Fund accounting segregates funds according fo their mtended purpose
and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance related legal and
contractual provisions. The County maintains the minimum number of funds consistent with legal
and managerial requirements. Account groups are a reporting device to account for certain assets
and liabilities of governmental funds not recorded directly in those funds. The County's resources
are reflected in the financial statemenis in eight generic fund types within three broad fund
categories as well as two account groups, in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles as foliows:

1. Fund Categorigs

a. Governmental Funds - Governmental Funds are those through which most general
government functions are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of
expendable financial resources and the related liabilities are accounted for through
govermnmental funds.

General Fund - The General Fund constitutes the primary operating fund of the
County in that it includes all revenues and expenditures not required by law to be
accounied for in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are established to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than proprietary, expendable trusts or
capital proiects) that are legally restricted io expenditures for certain defined
purposes. The special revenue funds of the County are as follows:

County Road Fund - The County Road Fund was established pursuant to
New York State Highway Law and is used o account for the maintenance
and repair of County roads and bridges and snow removal costs.

Road Machinery Fund - The Road Machinery Fund is used {o account for the
purchase, repair and maintenance of highway machinery, tools and
equipment and for the purchase, construction and maintenance of buildings
for the storage and repair of highway machinery and equipment.

Community Development Fund - The Community Deveiopment Fund s used
to account for projects financed by entitlernents from the U8, Department of
Housing and Urban Development.

Sewer District Fund - The Sewer District Fund is used to account for the
operation and maintenance of the County's sewer facilities.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CECEMBER 31, 1997

Mote 1 - Summary of

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is provided to account for the
accumulation of resources to be used for the redemption of principal and interest on
general long-term debt.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial
resources to be used for the acausition or construction of major capital faciities
other than those financed by proprietary funds.

Proprietary Funds - Proprietary funds include enterprise and intemnal service funds.
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated
in a manner similar to private enterprises or where the governing body has decided
that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net
income is necessary for management accountability. Enterprise funds are used to
account for those operations that provide services to the public. Internal service
funds account for operations that provide services to other departrments or agencies
of the government, or to other governments, on a cost reimbursement basis. The
operations of the Summit Park Hospital/Rockland County Infrmary {(Home and
Infirmary} are recorded as an enterprise fund. The Home and Infirmary is a chronic
care hospital and a skilled nursing facility established and operated under provisions
of Article 6 of General Municipal Law. The County has esiablished its Workers'
Compensation Benefits, General Liability Claims, Unemployment Benefits, Health
Benefits and General Services funds as internal service funds. The County applies

" ali applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements in

accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the County
in a trustee or custodial capacity. Fiduciary funds include Expendable Trust and
Agency funds. The Expendable Trust Fund accounts for assets held by the County
irn accordance with terms of a trust agreement. The Agency Fund accounts for
assets held by the County on behalf of others.

2. Account Groups

Account groups are used o establish accounting control and accouniability for the

County's general fixed assets and general long-term debt,

General Fixed Assets Account Group - This account group is established to account
for all fixed assets not accounted for in proprietary fund types.

General Long-Term Debt Account Group - This account group is established to
account for all long-term obligations that are not a specific liability of the proprietary

fund types.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued}

C.

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. Governmental fund types and expendable trust funds are presented using the
flow of current financial rescurces measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current
assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheets. Operating statements
present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other
financing uses) in net current assets. The reported unreserved fund balance is a measure of
"available spendable resources”.

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus.
This measurerment focus emphasizes the delermination of net income,  With this measurement
focus, all assets and liabilities {(whether current or non-current) associated with the operation of
these funds are included on the balance sheet. Proprietary fund type operating statements present
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets. The reported fund equity {net
total assets) may be segregated into contributed capital and fund balance/retained eamings
components.

The Agency Fund is custodial in nature and does not measure results of operations or have
a measurement focus.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed in the governmental fund types,
expendable trust and agency funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recorded in the accounting period in which they are "measurable” and "available" to finance current
operations. “Measurabie” means the amount of the fransaction can be determined and “avaiiable”
means collectible within the current period or soon encugh thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of
the current period. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has specified the
principies to be used in the recognition of real property tax revenue. These principles provide that
reai property taxes be recognized as revenue only when received in cash during the current period,
or soon enough thereafter to be "available” to meet the obligations of the current period. The term
"avaiable” has been limited to a period not to exceed sixty days subseqguent to the end of the fiscal
year unless unusual circumstances are present. A one year avaiiabifity period is used for revenue
recognition for all other governmental and expendable frust fund revenues. Revenues susceptible
to accrual inciude real property taxes, services to other governments and intergovermnmental
revenues. Permits, fees and other similar revenues are not susceptible tc accrual because
generally they are not measurable until they are received in cash.  If expenditures are the prime
factor for determining eligibility, revenues from Federal and State grants are accrued when the
expenditure is made.

Expenditures, under the modified accrual basis, are generally recognized when the related
fund liability is incurred. Exceptions to this general rule are (1) unmatured principal and interest on
general iong-term debt which is recognized as an expenditure when due, (2) certain payments o
employee relirement systemns which are recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group
and recognized as an expenditure when paid and {3) interest or short-term debt which is recognized
as an expenditure when dus.
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The accrual basis of accounting is followed in the proprietary funds. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are recorded at the time
Habilines are incurred.

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from
patients, third-party payers and others for services rendered. Revenues received under cost
reimbursement agreements and prospective contractual agreements represent a substantial portion
of the Home and Infirmary's revenue and are subject to audit and possible adjustment by the
third-party reimbursement agencies. Retroactively calculated third-party contractual adjustments are
accrued on an estimated basis in the period the services are rendered and adjusted in future
periods as required.

Component Units

Component units are presented on the basis of accounting that most accurately reflect their
activities. The Soil and Water Conservation District is accounted for on the modified accrual basis.,
The College, the Industrial Development Agency and the Sofid Waste Management Authority are
accounted for on the accrual basis. The College, however, does not reflect property, plant and
equipment as an asset of the fund and depreciation is not reflected. Property, plant and equipment
of the College is owned by the County and such assets are reflected in the General Fixed Assets
Account Group.

0. Budgetary Data

The County follows the procedures enumerated below in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the financial statements:

a} On or before August 1st, the administrative head of each department is required to submit
to the County Executive the expenditure requirements for the next fiscal year.

) The County Executive is required to file the fentative budget for the ensuing vear with the
Clerk of the Legisiature on or before October 23rd.

c) Subsequent to October 23rd, the Legislature conducts the necessary review of the teniative
budget and proposes any changes theretfo.

d} Prior to November 20th, the Legisiature shall hold a public hearing on the budget.

e} After the public hearing, the Legislature may make changes {o the budget. The budget shail
be adopied no later than December 7ih.

) Formal budgetary integration is emplovyed during the year as & management control device
for General, Special Revenue and Debt Service funds.
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o) Budgets for General, Special Revenue and Debt Service funds are legally adopted annually
on & basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. The Capital Proiects
Fund is budgeted on a project basis. Annual budgets are not adopted for the Proprietary or
Fiduciary funds.

h) The County Legislature has established legal responsibility for all budget amendments and
transfers between functions of expenditure. The County Executive has authority for the
iransfer of appropriations within depariments and objects of expenditure.

i) Appropriations in General, Special Revenue and Debt Service funds lapse at the end of the
fiscal year, except that outstanding encumbrances are reappropriated in the succeeding
year.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the County Legisiature
Individual amendments for the current year were not material in relation to the onginal
appropriations which were amended,

E. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve applicable appropriations, is
generally employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General, Special
Revenue and Capital Projects funds. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported as
reservations of fund balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

F. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity

Cash and Equivalents - Cash and equivalents consist of funds deposited in demand
deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit with original maturities of less
than three months.

The County's investment policies are govermned by State statutes. The County has adopted
s own wrtten investment policy which provides for the deposit of funds in FDIC insured
commercial banks or trust companies located within the State. The County is authorized to use
demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and cerlificates of depostt.  Permissible
investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Agencies, repurchase agreerents and
obligations of New York State or its political subdivisions.

Collateral is required for demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of
deposit at 100% of all deposits not covered by federal deposit insurance. The County has entered
into custodial agreements with the various banks which hold their deposits. These agreements
authorize the obligations that may be pledged as collateral. Such obligations include, among other
mstruments, obligations of the United States and s agencies and obligations of the State and iz
municipal and school district subdivisions.
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Investments - All nvestments are stated at cost or amortized cost, except for investments
of the deferred compensation plan which are stated at market vaiue.

Taxes Receivable - Real property taxes are levied and attach as a lien against the property
on January 1st. County taxes are billed with town taxes and initially collected by the towns on
behalf of the County. Real property taxes may be paid between January 1st and January 31st
without interest or penalty. Payments received after January 31st must include interest computed
at 1% per month from February 1st. The towns retain the first amounts collected to satisfy the
entire amount of their respective tax warrants. Amounts collected thereafter are remifted to the
County. Tax rolls and a listing of the unpaid taxes are retumed tfo the County in April. A 5% penalty
is added to the unpaid tax which is coflected by the County until such taxes are included in the tax
lien saie held in October.

The County enforces delinquent real property taxes under the provisions of Ardicle 11
(Article 11 applies to taxes levied after December 31, 1985 and provides for the foreclosure of tax
sale liens by proceedings in rem) of the Real Property Tax Law. Enforcement procedures set forth
in Article 11 provide that the enforcing officer shall file a petition of foreciosure twenty-one months
after the lien date (the County may extend the filing date for residential and farm property by one or
two years). Such petition is required to be filed with the County Clerk within two business days after
the execution of the petition. After the petition has been filed with the County Clerk, a notice of
foreclosure must be published in af least two newspapers designated by the enforcing officer. The
published notice shall include the date of the last day on which delinquent taxes may be redeemed.
The redemption date must be at least three months after the date the notice is first published. !f the
delinquent taxes, inciuding all related charges, are not paid on the date specified in the notice of
foreclosure, the Court generally makes a final judgment awarding the property to the County. Such
judgment will contain any order that a deed conveying title to the County shall be prepared, executed
and duly recorded. No proceeding to set aside the deed may be maintained uniess proceedings
are commenced within two years from the date of recording the deed. Properties acquired by the
County through tax enforcement procedures must be sold at a public auction.

The County is also responsible for coilecting and enforcing delinquent school district taxes.
Such taxes are collected by the towns in the County between September 1st and Qctober 31st,
after which the school tax rolis and unpaid taxes are remitted to the County. A 5% penaity is added
to the amount of the unpaid school tax. The County collects unpaid school taxes during the month
of November. Any taxes remaining unpaid after this time are relieved, with a 7% penalty, as County
taxes for the following vear. The County must satisfy the full amount of the unpaid school district
taxes no iater than April 1st of the year following the levy of such taxes.

Fursuant to Arficle 14 of the Real Property Tax Law, the County has agreements with
various villages within the County to collect and enforce delinguent village taxes. County tax bills
include amounts relieved, with a 7% penalty, for unpaid village taxes where appropriate. The
County must satisfy the full amount of the unpaid village taxes no later than April 1st of the year
foltowing the levy of such taxes,

COther Receivabies - Other receivables include amounts due from other governments and
individuals for services provided by the County. Receivables are recorded and revenues
recognized as eamed or as specific program expenditures are incurred.
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Due From/To Other Funds - During the course of its operations, the County has numerous
transactions between funds {o finance operations, provide services and construct assets. To the
extent that certain transactions between funds had not been paid or received as of December 31,
1897, balances of interfund amounts receivable or payable have been recorded.

Prepaid Expenditures/Expenses - Prepaid expenditures/expenses consist of employee
retirement and other costs which have been satisfied prior to the end of the fiscal year, but
represent items which have been provided for in the subsequent year's budget and/or will benefit
such periods. Reported amounts in govemnmental funds are equally offset by a reservation of fund
balance which indicates that these amounts do not constitute "available spendable resources” even
though they are a component of current assets.

inventories - The mventories reflected in the Proprietary Funds are stated at the lower of
average cost or market and consist of materials, supplies and drugs used at the Home and
infirmary and materials and supplies used by the General Services Fund. Purchases of
inventoriable items at other locations are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and
year-end balances at these iocations are not material.

Fixed Assets - Fixed assels used in govemmental fund type operations (general fixed
asseis) are accounted for in the General Fixed Assets Account Group, rather than in governmental
funds and are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is not available.
Donated assets are recorded at their fair market vaiue on the date donated. No provision for
depreciation is made on general fixed assets. Interest incurred during construction is not capitalized
on general fixed assets. Public domain ("infrasfructure™) general fixed assets consisting of certain
improvements other than buidings including roads, bridges, curbs and gutlers, streets and
sidewalks, drainage systems and lighting systems are exciuded from general fixed assets since
such items are immovable and are of value only to the County.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not included in the General Fixed Assets Account Group or
capitalized in the proprietary funds.

Fixed assets in the proprietary funds and applicable component unils are stated af cost
Donated assets are recorded at their fair market value on the date donated. Irterest on applicable
debt, nat of inferest eamed on available funds, is capitatized dunng the period of construction. Major
additions or renovations are depreciated from the date they are ready for use; other acquisitions are
depreciated one-half year in the year of acquisition and one-half vear in the yvear of disposition or
retirement. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of the assets, which are as follows:

Asset Service Lives
Buiidings 40 years
improverments other than
buildings 20 years
Equipment 4-20 years
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Restricted Assets - Restricted assets consist of bond proceeds held by a State agency.
These funds are to be used for improvements to the County's sewer district and the Solid Waste
fManagement Authority.

Deferred Revenues - Deferred revenues are those where asset recognition criteria have
been met, but for which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. The County has reported
as deferred revenues certain real property taxes, state aid, rehabilitation loans, tuition and other
tems in the respective funds. Such amounts have been deemed to be measurable but not
“available” pursuant to generally accepted accounting principies.

Long-Term Obligations - The County records long-term debt of governmental funds at
face value in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. Certain other govermmental fund
obligaticns not expected to be financed with current available financial resources are also reported
in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group. Long-term debt and other liabilities financed by
proprietary funds are reported as liabilities within those funds.

Compensated Absences - The liability for compensated absences has been recorded in
the respective funds inasmuch as they will be funded from curent rescurces. The
expenditure/expense related to vested vacation and sick pay in the operating funds was accrued
based upon pay rates currently in effect.

Retained Earnings - Retained earnings represent the equity generated from the operations
of the proprietary funds.

Fund Balance - Reserves and Designations - Portions of fund balance are segregated for
future use and are therefore not available for future appropriation or expenditure. Amounts
reserved represent portions of fund balance which are required to be segregated in accordance with
State law or generally accepted accounting principies. Designation of unreserved fund balances in
govemnmental funds indicates the ufilization of these resources in the ensuring years budget or
tentative plans for future use. The undesignated fund balance indicates that portion of fund balance
which is available for budgeting in future periods.

G, interfund Transactions

Quasi-externai transactions are accounted for as revenues or expenditures/expenses.
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made
from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. Al
other interfund fransactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are reported
as transfers. Non-recurring or non-routine permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual
equity transfers. All other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers.

H. Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in the accompanying
combined financial statements in order to provide an understanding of changes in the County's
financial position and operations. Certain reclassifications of prior year financial data have been
made to conform with the current vear prasematéear%
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Note 1 - Sunumnary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

i Total Columns in General Purpose Financial Statements

Total columns in the general purpose financial statements are captioned "Memorandum
Only” to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these coiumns
do not present financial position, results of operations or cash flows in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles, Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation.  Interfund
gliminations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

J4. iUse of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principies requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the repored
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial staterments. Estimates aiso affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/ expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results couid differ from those
estimates.

Note 2 - Stewardship. Compliance and Accountability

Property Tax Limitation

The County is permitted by the State Constitution to levy for purposes other than debt service up to
1 1/2% of the five year average full valuation of {axable real estate located within the County. In
accordance with this provision, the maximum amount of the levy for 1997 was $288 690 831 which
exceeded the actual levy by $241 564 051

Residual Equity Transfers

The County, at December 31, 1897, determined that the activities related to the ES11 program
would be more accurately reflected as an activity of the General Fund, rather than in the General Services
Fund. Accordingly, the remaining equity was transferred to the General Fund.

The County purchased and began instaliation of a County-wide computer system during 1887 The
financing and expenditures were initially accounted for as a capital project within the Capital Projects Fund.
Since installation is being managed by the Department of General Services and the system will be
operated as an element of the General Services Fund, the project costs and related financing were
transferred to the General Service Fund, an intermal sewer fund. The residual equity transfer in the Capital
Projects Fund reflects the excess of project expenditures over financing received. There is no
corresponding offset in the General Services Fund, since expenditures were capitalized and the financing

reflected as debt,
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Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds and Account Groups

A. Assets
Deposits

The carrying amourt of the primary govemment's deposits, inclusive of non-negotiable
certificates of deposit of $68,273,134 reflected as investments on the balance sheets, at December
31, 1997 was $125,889,215, exclusive of petty and departmental cash of $16,380. The bank
balance was $126 808 280. Of the bank balance, $1.245 401 was covered by federal deposit
insurance, $54,071,401 was covered by collateral held by the County's agent, a third party financial
institution, In the County’'s name and $74.491 488 was covered by collateral held in the trust
department of the pledging financial institution in the County's name.

The carrying amount, including non-negotiable certificates of deposit of $4, 300,000 reflected
as investments on the balance sheets at December 31, 1887, bank balances and coliateral of the
component units were as follows:

Soit and Solid
Water Waste Industnal
Community Conservation  Management  Development
College District Authornty Authority
Carrying amount $ 8516385 3 8448 § 2564406 % 18,822
Bank balance $ 8958473 % 9648 § 2574872 § 18,822
Coliateral:
Amounts insured by FDIC $ 480932 % 9648 § 20000C % 18,822
Collateral heid by the trust
department of the pledging
financial institution in the
entity’s name 8,477 540 - - -
Coliateral heid by the entity’s
agent, a third party financial
institution, in the entity's
name - - 2374 872 -
$ BO5B473 9948 § 2574872 % 18,822

Investments
Investments of the primary govermnment are stated at cost, which approximates market

value, and consist of 2 31,000,000 US. Treasury Note. The U8 Treasury Note is held by the
County's agent, a third party financial institution, in the County's name.
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Taxes Receivabile

Taxes receivable af December 31, 1997 consisted of the following:

Tax sale certificates $ 16,279.068
Tax instailments 4 663 845
Retumed school district taxes 12,111,806
Reaturnead village taxes 1,343,835
Property acquired for taxes ) 123,468
34 528 122

Allowance for uncollectible taxes (2.850.000)
$ 31678127

i AR A e

School districts and village taxes are offset by habilities (o the school districts and villages
which will be paid ne tater than Aprid 1998, Taxes receivable are also partially offset by deferred tax
revenues of $15,503,330 which represents an estimate of the receivable which will not be coliected
within the first sixty days of the subsequent year.

Due From/To Other Funds

The halances reflected as due from/to other funds at December 31, 1997 were as follows:

Pue Due
Fund From Te
Primary Government:

General Fund 3 - % 8228725
County Read Fund 536,931 -
Road Machinery Fund 571,978 -
Community Development Fund 1565 378 .
Sewer District Fund 158,032 -
Debt Service Fund 88877 -
Capital Projects Fund . 742 412
Home and Infrmary Fund 5.123,525 -

Workers' Compensation Benefils
Fund - 55 861
General Liability Claims Fund 184,107 -
Unemployment Benefits Fund - 8,579
Health Benefits Fund - 1,881,828
General Services Fund 4 220,954 -
Agency Fund - 22176
11,039,582 11,038,582

Component Urit -

Community College : 458 378 458 378

$ 11497960 3 11497960
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General Fixed Assels

Changes in general fixed assets during 1987 were as follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
Category 1897 Additions Deletions 1897

Land $ 7818800 % 618,400 3 - $ B 438000

Buildings 40,518,492 - - 40,518,492
Improvemenis other than

buildings 336,972,039 11,421,651 - 348,393,690

Equipment 22,264 416 963,407 1,671,628 21,556,185

Construction-in-progress 252 540 019 17,173,223 13,463,802 256249 340

$ 660114566 § 30176681 § 15135530 § 675155717

Fixed Assets - Enterprise Fund

Fixed assets of the Enterprise Fund at December 31, 1997 are comprised of the following:

Land $ 438,504
Buildings 16,221,905
improvernents other than buildings 345 875
Equiprment 27,207 861
Construction-in-progress 3,468 559

3 47683204

Fixed Assets - Internal Service Fund

Fized assets of the Intemal Service Fund at December 31, 1997 are comprised of the

fotlowing:
Buildings $ 2,880
Equipment 5,361,307
$ 6364287

Fixed Assets - Component Unit

The fixed assets of the Solid Waste Management Authority at December 31, 1887 are
compnsed of the following:

Land 5 5RY 636
Construction-in-progress 19,013,682
$ 19603218
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Restricted Assels
Primary Government

The restricted assets of the primary government consist of investments in US. Treasury
Bills. the use of which is restricied to sewer improvements. These investments are held by a State
agency and are not subject to collateralization requirements.

Component Unit

The restricted asseis of the component unit consist of cash and equivalents, the use of
which is restricted to construction of solid waste disposal projects. These amounts are not subject
fo collateralization requirements.

B. Liabilities
Unpaid Claim Liabilities

The Internal Service funds reflect workers' compensation benefit liabilities, general liability
claims, unemployment benefit iabilities and health benefit liabilities which are based upon estimates
of the uitimate cost of ciaims (including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported,
but not settled, and of claims that have been incured but not reported (IBNR's). The length of time
for which such costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved. Because
actual claim costs depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability
and damage awards, the process used in computing claims liabilities does not necessarily result in
an exact amount. Claim liabilities "are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuanal and
statistical techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim frequency
and other economic and social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated future
claims costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data
that reflects past inflation and other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past
experience.

An analysis of the activity of unpaid claim liabilities is as follows:

Workers' General
Compensation Liability Unemployment Health

Fiscal 1997 Benefits Claims Benefils Benefits
Unpaid claims - Beginning

of Year P 656568846 $ 4180186 $ 41873 & 6356513
Incurred claims including

IBNR's 1,827 405 2,177,061 130,380 22,961 558
Claims paid (2475 827} {1.532.240} {144 528} (25.151.675)
Unpaidclaims -EndofYear $ 6021014 $ 4825017 & 27525 & 4166358
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Workers' General
Compensation Liability Unemployrment Health

Fiscal 1996 Benefits Claims Benefits Benefits
Unpaid claims - Beginning

of Year $ 6044582 $ 6520141 % 84854 % 4827538
Incurred claims inciuding

iBNR's 2420278 55255 235,522 24 420,432
Claims paid {1,896,014) {2,395 200) (278,703} {22.891.458)
Unpaidclaims -EndofYear $§ 6568846 § 4180196 $ 41673 3 6356513

indebtedness
Revenue Anticipation Note Payable

The County, during 1897, issued $15 million in notes in anticipation of certain State aid.
The notes are due in April 1988, with interest at 4. 25%.

Bond Anticipation Notes Payable

The County, in 1987, issued a $6,800,000 bond anticipation note to finance various capital
improvements. The notes are due one vear from date of issuance, with interest at 4 0% Liabilities
for bond anticipation notes are generally accounted for in the Capital Projects Fund. Bond
anticipation notes issued for judgments or settled claims are recorded in the fund paying the claim.
Principat payments on bond anticipation notes must be made annually. State [aw requires that
bond anticipation notes issued for capital purposes or judgments be converted to long-term
obligations within generally five years after the original issue date. However, bond anticipation
notes issued for assessable improvement projects may be renewed for periods equivalent to the
maximum life of the permanent financing, provided that stipulated annual reductions of principal are
made.

Long-Term indebtedness

The changes in the County's long-term indebtedness during the year ended December 31,
1897 are summanzed as follows;
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Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
1987 Additions Reductions 1987
Serial Bonds:
Governmental Funds $ 123225445 % 13836000 $ 12,708,224 $ 124 413221
Proprietary Funds:
Enterprise Fund 12,089 885 1,810,000 1.825.316 12,184 569
Internal Service Funds 483 170 4 060,000 43 460 4,446 710
Total Seral Bonds 135818 500 18,806 000 14,577 000 141.047 500
Due to Retirement System:
Governmenta! Funds 1.438 405 3,411,780 310,823 4 539 3682
Proprietary Funds;
Enterprise Fund 1,512,835 627 .000. 407 433 1,731,602
internal Service Funds 276,710 264 810 - 541,620
3227 150 4,303,650 718,256 6.812.584
Totals 3 138045650 $ 24 108690 3 15285256 $ 147 860,084

Bonds Payable
Bonds payable at December 31, 1997 are comprised of the following individual issues:

$16,170,000 - 1973 bonds for sewer district improvemenis, due in
annual installments of $540,000 through April 1899, $550,000
through April 2004 and $415.000 in April 2008, interest at 5.50% for
maturities through 2001 and 4.50% for maturities through 2005 $ 4 245 000

$7.220,000 - 1975 bonds for Rockland Community College, due in
April 1998, interest at 5.50% 375,000

$13,225000 - 1976 bonds for various purposes including
improvements to the heaith complex, County office building, fire
training center and County jail, due in annual instaliments of
3575,000 in June 1888 and $50,000 through June 2000, inferest at
5.50% 675,000

39,356,000 - 1984 bonds for various purposes including

improvements {o heaith complex, bridges, drainage and Rockland
Community College, due in May 1958, interest at 7 60% 575,000
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$11,180,000 - 1984 bonds for sewer district improvements, due in
annual instaliments of $450,000 through May 2008 and $385,000 in
May 2009 interest at 8.375% for maturities through 2002, 9.40%
for maturities through 2005 and 8.50% for maturities through 2009

$5,108,150 - 1984 bonds for various purposes including
improvements to Rockland Community College, health complex,
various butidings and highway and drainage projects, due in annual
instaliments of $275 000 in May 1898 ang $250,000 in May 1889,
interest at B.75%

$11,623.000 - 1985 bonds for public improvement purposes
including improvements to the Sheriff's building, the County jail and
the health complex, due in annual installments of $700,000 through
September 2000 and 3650000 in September 2001 interest at
7.875% for maturities in 1998 and 8.00% for matunties through
2001

$9,520000 - 1986 bonds for sewer purposes, due in annual
instaliments of $380,000 through June 2001, $400.000 through
June 2006, $420,000 through June 2010 and $425 000 n June
2011, interest at 7.40% and 7.50%, depending upon maturity

312,526 248 - 1986 bonds for public improvements including the
health complex, due in annual installments of $555000 in Apnl
1998, $565,000 through April 2000 and $575,000 through April
2002; interest at 7.00% and 7.10%, depending upon maturity

$10.000,000 - 1986 bonds for sewer purposes, due in annual
instaliments of $400,000 through April 2001, $425 000 through Aprit
2004, $450,000 through April 2008 and $475,000 through April
2011; interest at 7.00% and 7.10%, depending upon maturity

$9.658,000 - 1887 bonds for public improvements including the
health complex, due in annual instaliments of 3450 000 through
September 2001 and 3375000 in September 2002, interest at
8.90% for maturities in 1998 and 7.00% for maturities through 2002

$10,546,000 - 1988 bonds for public improvements including the
heaith complex, due in annual instaliments of $660,000 in October
1998, $625.000 through Oclober 2002 and $525.000 in October
2003; interest at 6.80% for maturities through 1998, 6875% for
maturities through 2001 and 6.90% for maturities through 2003
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$11.785000 - 1989 bonds for public improvements including the
health complex, due in annual instaliments of $575 000 through
February 1899, 3%475000 through February 2001, $450.000
through February 2004, $250,000 in February 2005 and $225.000
through February 2009; interest at 6.6%

$20.284 115 - 1980 bonds for refunding of sewer improvement
honds, due in annual nstaliments of $860,000 in March 1998,
$681 500 in March 1998, $1.005.000 in March 2000, $1.026 000 in
March 2001, $1.047 000 in March 2002, $1,069 000 in March 2003,
$1.,090,000 in March 2004, 31,111,000 in March 2005, $1,134,000
in March 2006, $1,155,000 i March 2007, 1,174,000 in March
2008, $1.,196,000 in March 2009 and 51,213,000 in March 2010,
interest at rates ranging from 580% to 7.50%, depending on
rmaturity

39,950,000 - 1992 bonds for varous purposes, due in annual
instaliments of 3700000 in October 1998, 3685000 through
October 2002, 3450000 n October 2003, $435 000 in Oclober
2004, $430,000 in October 2005, $425,000 through October 2007,
3135000 in October 2008, 3110000 i October 2008 and
$115,000 through October 2012, interest at rates ranging from
5.20% to 5.50%, depending on maturity

$2.805.000 - 1982 bonds for sewer purposes, due in annual
instaliments of $130,000 in September 1888, $135,000 through
September 2000, $140,000 in September 2001, $145,000 through
September 2003, $150,000 in September 2004, $155,000 through
September 2006, $160 000 through Seplember 2008, $165,000 in
September 2009, $170,000 through September 2011 and $175,000
in September 2012, interest at 6. 46%

$8,125.00G - 1992 bonds to satisfy pension liability, due in annual
mistaliments of $800.000 in December 1998, $725.000 in December
19949, $750.000 in December 2000 and 3775000 through
December 2005, interest at rates ranging from 7.20% to 7.25%,
depending on maturily

$5.855 000 - 1992 bonds for sewer purposes, due in annual
instaliments of 3285000 in September 1988 $270,000 In
September 1889, $280,000 through September 2001, $250.000 in
September 2002, $295000 in September 2003, $300000 in
September 2004, $310,000 in September 2005, $315,000 in
September 2006, $320.000 i September 2007 $325000 i
September 2008, $330,000 in September 2008, $340000 in
September 2010, 3345 000 in September 2011 and $350,000 in
September 2012, interest at rates ranging from 3.00% to 6.65%,
depending on maturity
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$11,310,000 - 1983 bonds for refunding of sewer and varicus
purpese bonds, due In annual installments of $870,000 in March
1998, $660.000 in March 1898, $620,000 through March 2002,
$605,000 through March 2005, $800,000 in March 2006, $240,000
i March 2007, 3235000 in March 2008 and $240,000 through
March 2017 interest at rates ranging from 3.0% to 5.375%,
depending upon maturity

%4 350,000 - 1993 honds for sewer purposes, due in annual
instaliments of $190000 in September 1998, $185000 in
September 1998 $200,000 in September 2000, $205000 in
September 2001, $210,000 in September 2002, $215000 in
September 2003, $220.000 in September 2004, 3225000 in
September 2005, $230,000 in September 2006, $235000 in
September 2007, $240,000 in September 2008, $245,000 through
September 2010, $250,000 in September 2011, $255000 in
September 2012 and $260.000 in September 2013; interest at rates
ranging from 2.55% to 5.6%, depending upon matunity

$2.675000 - 1983 bonds for sewer purposes, due in annual
instaliments of $120,000 through November 1898, $125,000
through MNovember 2001, $130,000 through November 2003,
$135,000 in November 2004, $140,000 through November 2008,
$145,000 through November 2008, $150,000 through November
2010, $155000 in November 2011 anc $180,000 through
November 2013, interest at rates ranging from 2.65% to 520%,
depending upon maturity

$11,248,000 - 1894 bonds for public improvements including the
health complex, due in annual instaliments of $875000 through
Aprl 2001, 3850,000 in April 2002, $6800,000 through Apnt 2005,
$575,000 in April 2006, $400,000 in April 2007, $385,000 in April
2008, $370.000 in Aprii 2009, $240 000 in April 2010 and $235,00C
in Aprit 2011, interest at rates ranging from 5.20% to 5.80%,
depending upon maiurity

$12,347 000 - 1894 bonds for public improvements including the
health complex, due in annual instaliments of $1.6890.000 In
Movember 1968, $1,780000 in November 18889 $470000 in
Movember 2000, 3490000 in November 2001, $505 000 in
November 2002, $525000 in November 2003, $530000 in
November 2004, $325000 in November 2005, $320000 in
November 2006, $350,000 through November 2008, $355,000 in
Movember 2009 and $140,000 through November 2014; interest at
rates ranging from 5.80% to 6.00%, depending upon maturity
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$12,546,000 - 1995 bonds for various purposes, due in annual
instaliments of $1.045,000 in August 1898, $1.100.000 in August
1999, 31,155.000 in August 2000, $1.210000 in August 2001,
$1.275.000 in August 2002, $1,335,000 in August 2003, $1.405,000
in August 2004, 31475000 in August 2005 and $1.550,000 in
August 2006; interest at rates ranging from 4.00% to 6 00%,

depending upon matur - 3 11,650,000

$6,365.000 - 1996 bonds for sewer purposes, due in annual
instaliments of $645 000 in December 1998, $255000 through
December 2000, 3260000 in December 2001, $265000 in
December 2002, 3270000 i December 2003, 3275000 mn
December 2004, 3285000 in December 2005 $295000 in
December 2006, $300,000 through December 2008, $315.000 in
December 2006, $320000 in December 2010, $330.000 in
December 2011, 3340000 in December 2012 8355000 in
December 2013, $360,000 in December 2014, 3370000 in
December 2015, $380,000 in December 2018 and $380.000 n
December 2017, interest at rates ranging from 4 625% to 52%,

depending on maturity 5,135,000

$19.806,000 - 1987 bonds for various purposes including the health
compiex, due in annual installments of $1.221 000 in August 1898,
$1,320,000 in August 1989, $1,385 000 in August 2000, $1,450 000
in August 2001, $1,520,000 in August 2002, $1,.580,000 in August
2003, $1.67C.000 in August 2004, $1.750000 in August 2005,
$1.835.000 in August 2006, $1.925,000 in August 2007, $2,620,000
i August 2008 and $2,120,000 in August 2009, interest at rates

ranging from 4.25% to 5%, depending on maturity 19,806,000

b 141,047 500

The annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt outstanding as of December 31, 1997
including interest payments of $45,147 598 are as follows:

Year Govermnmantal Froprietary

Ended Funds Funds Total
1998 19,368,453 § 3.040220 % 22408673
1999 17 896 984 2,499 175 20,196 159
2000 16,054 423 2,324 229 18,378652
2001 15,614,200 2,173,764 17,787 964
2007 14 375524 1,880 421 16,355 945
2003-2007 53,654,858 7,353,080 61,007,938
2008-2012 24,148 036 1.823 666 254972702
2013-2017 4 002 045 85020 4 087,065
164915623 § 21278575 § 186195008
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The above general obligation bonds are direct obligations of the County for which its full
faith and credit are pledged and are payable from taxes levied on all taxable real property within the
County. The "Amount to be Provided for General Long-Term Debt" represents the amount
exclusive of interest, authorized o be collected in future years from taxpavers and others for
iguidation of long-term liabiiities.

Component Units
Community College

The Office of the State Comptroller of the State of New York ("State Comptrolier”)
conducted two separate audits relating to tuition assistance payments made to the College’s Judaic
Studies Program. One concemed the students in the Israel Program and the other reiated to the
College’'s New Square operation. The audits covered the years 1983 through 1988 and
recommended that the Higher Education Services seek to recover $4,772 986 from the College.

During December 1883, the College entered into a settlement with New York State whereby
the College will repay New York State $2.2 million in Tuition Assistance Payments in lieu of the
disallowances claimed. The repayment is being made in five equal annual instaliments of
$440,000, without interest. The College has imputed interest at 4% and has recorded the minimum
future discounted amount of 3423076 as of August 31, 1897. This balance has been reflected as
due to other governments. The annual payment will be funded through the reduction of future
tuition assistance payments to the College. :

Solid Waste Management Authority

The Solid Waste Management Authority received a loan from the County, which at
December 31, 1997, has an outstanding balance of $840,000. The loan is due in annual
installments and bears interest at the rate of 5 80%.

Solid Waste Management Authority bonds payable at December 31, 1987 consisted of the
following issues:

$22.836 600 - 1996 serial bonds, due in annual
nstaliments of $850 000 in 1898, $880 000 in
1999, 3875000 in 2000, $895.000 in 2001,
$910.000 in 2002, $830,000 in 2003, $950.000
in 2004, $970.000 in 2005, $995,000 in 2006,
$1.020000 in 2007, $1.045000 in 2008
31075000 in 2008, $1.105000 in 2010,
$1.135000 in 2011, $1165000 in 2012,
$1.200000 n 2013, $1.235000 in 2014,
$1.270,000 in 2015 and 33,670,000 in 2018
interest at stated rates between 3.35% to 5.2%,
depending upon maturity $ 22,155,000
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$11.6820,000 - 19968 senal bonds net of
unamortized discount of $201 312 in 1967 and
%223 666 in 1898, due in annusgl instaliments of
$445 000 in 2000, 3465000 in 2001, $485,000
in 2002, $510.000 in 2003, $535 000 in 2004,
$560.000 i 2005, $580,000 in 2006, $620.000
in 2007, $6855 000 in 2008, $690.000 in 2009,
$730,000 in 2010, 3770.000 in 2011, 3815000
in 2012, $880,000 in 2013, 3910000 in 2014,
$965.000 in 2015 and $1.015.000 in 2015;
interast at stated rates betwaen 4 6% fo 5 58%,

depending upon matunty ¥ 11418688
33573688

Less: Current Maturities 826,356
$ 32747332

Af the option of the Authority, the serial bonds included in the $22 936 600 issue will ba
subject to redemption prior to matunity on or affer June 15, 2006. These bonds may be redeemed
gither as 2 whole at any time or in part on any interest payment date on or after june 15, 2006 at
the following redemption prices plus accrued interest, if any, to the date of redemption.

Redemption Penod Redernption Price
{Dates Inclusive) {as a % of Pan
June 158, 20086 (o June 14, 2007 102 %
June 15, 2007 to June 14, 2008 101 %
June 15 2008 and thereafter 100 %

At the option of the Authority, the serial bonds included in the $11,620 000 issue will be
subject to redemption prior to maturty on or after December 15, 2008, These bonds may be
redeemed either as a whole or in part at any time at the following redemption prices plus accrued
interest, if any, to the date of redemption.

Redemption Period Redemption Price
{Dates Inclusive) (as a % of Pan
December 15, 20086 to December 14, 2007 102%
December 15, 2007 o December 14, 2008 101%
December 15, Z008 and thereafler 100%
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The annual requirements to amortize all long-term debt of the component units, including
mterest of $16,826 for the College and 320,642 550 for the Solid Waste Management Authority are

as follows:
Solid Waste
College Management Authority
Princigal rnferast Total Principal interest Tota
1948 $ 4230768 % 168,924 % 440000 % 850,000 3 1.666,856 § 2516856
19895 - - - 86G,000 1,636,781 2,496,781
2000 - - - 1,320,060 1,604 531 2,824 531
2001 - - - 1,360,000 1,549,836 2,806,638
2002 - - - 1,395 000 1,492 281 2,887 281
2003-2007 . - . 7,680,000 6487 984 14 162 064
2008-2012 - - - ¢.185,000 4 445 431 13,630,431
2013-2016 - - - 11,125 000 1688 156  12.813,180

3 423076 § 16924 % 440000 § 33775000 & 20587 030 3542342030

Prior Year Defeasance of Debt

in prior vears, the County defeased sewer improvement and varicus purpose bonds by
placing the procesds of new bonds in an imevocable trust to provide for all future debt service
payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased
bonds are not included in the County's financial statements. At December 31, 1987, 321 055000
of bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

Pension Plans

The primary government and certain component units participate in the New York State and
Local Employees’ Retirement Systern (ERS). The System provides retirement, disability and death
benefits to plan members. Obligations of employers and employees to contribute and benefits (o
empioyees are governed by the New York State Retirement and Social Secunty Law. The System
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Systern. That report may be oblained by writing to the New York
State and Local Retirement System, Governor Alfred £ Smith State Office Building, Albany, New
York 12224 :

Funding Policy - The System is non-contributory except for employees who joined after July
27. 1976, who contribute 3% of their salary. Contributions are cerlified by the State Comptroller
and expressed as a percentage of members’ salary.  Contribution rates are actuarnally determined
and based upon membership ter and plan.  Contributions consist of 2 life insurance portion (GTLY)
and regular pension contributions. Contribution rates for the plan year ended March 31, 1828 are
as follows:
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Contributions made to the System for the current and two preceding years were as follows:

Component Unils

Soil and
Water industrial
Primary Conservation  Development
Government College District Agency
1597 $ 1584158 % 100,852 % - 3 1,160
1995 2,692 591 221,701 2,320 1,100
1985 1,487 405 301,581 1,538 1,878

These contributions were equal to 100% of the actuariaily required contributions for each
respective fiscal year.

The current ERS contnibution for the primary government was charged to the funds
identified below.

Amount
Governmental Funds $ 1,020,363
Proprietary Funds 563,796
$ 15841589

Chapter 12 of the Laws of 1995 authorized local governments to offer employess a
retirement incentive program. The aggregate cost for the program was 32 543 365 The payment
terms provide for repayment over a five year period plus interest. The remaining liability for this
program is $1,533.831. Of this amount, $712,082 is applicable to governmental funds of the
primary govemment and has been recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group since it
will be redeemed from future resources. The balance of $821,749 is applicable to the proprietary
funds and the College and has been reflected as a liability in those funds.
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The laws of 1996 authorized local governments to offer emplovees a retirement incentive
program. The aggregate cost for the program was $935081 The payment terms provide for
repayment over a five year, with interest. The remaining liabiity for this program is $716.379. Of
this amount, 3415 500 is applicable to the governmental funds of the primary government and has
been recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group since it will be redeemed from future
resources. The balance of $300 879 is applicable to the proprietary funds and the College and has
been reflected as a lability in those funds.

Chapter 41 of the Laws of 1997 authorized local governments to offer employees a new
retirernent incentive program. This program provides that eligible employees would receive up to a
maximum of three years service credit added to their pension benefit calculation. The cost of the
program is estimated at seventy-five percent of the empioyees’ last three years’ eligible wages. The
estimated cost of this program is $1,784 380, The primary govermment's portion applicable o
govermnmental funds of $892,640 has been recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account
Group since # will redeemed from future resources. Of the balance, $626,830 is applicable to the
Home and infirmary and $264,810 is appiicable to the intemal Service funds. These amounts have
been reflected as 2z liability in those funds.

The County, pursuant to Articie 14-B of the Retirement and a Social Secunty Law, elecied
to participate in a retirement option which provides for a special retirement for sheriffs and deputy
sheriffs engaged in criminal law enforcement activities. The cost of the plan is $2,519,140 and has
been recorded in the Generai Long-Term Debt Account Group since it will be redeemed from future
resources. Beginning in 1998, payments will be made over a ten year pernod with interest at 8 5%,

Chapter 437 of the Laws of 1983 added Articie 18 1o the New York Siate Retirement and
Social Security Law. Aricie 18 authorizes the granting of retrcactive fransfer, refroactive
membership and credi for previcus service in certain situations. It contains three sections, each
providing relief under different circumstances. Under Section 803, members may file application for
retroactive membership before October 14, 1896, which may entitle members to an earlier date of
membership. if it is determined that members are eligible for retroactive membership, the
employer, at the time members were first eligible for membership, must pay the employer's share of
the retirement cost. The primary government and its College component unit, dunng the 1997 fiscal
year, were notified of and satisfied labilities aggregating $87 387 for Articie 18 costs. This amount
was charged as follows:

Amourt
Primary Govermnment:
Governmental Funds $ 28 552
Proprietary Funds 47 922
Component Linit -
Community College 10,823
3 87,387

The Solid Waste Management Authority, Industniat Development Agency and the Soil Water
Conservation District do not incur eligible salaries and therefore do not participate in a New York
State pension program.
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Community College Pension Program

The College participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System
(ERS). the New York State Teachers’ Retirement System (TRS) and the Teachers' Insurance and
Annuity Association - College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA-CREF). The ERS Plan is the same
System which covers County employees. The elements of this System are described above. TRS
is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans. TRS provides retirement,
disability and death benefits to plan members. Obligations of employers and empioyees to
contribute and benefits to empioyees are governed Education Law. The System issues a publicty
availabie financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information
for the Systern. The TRS report may be obtained by writing to the New York State Teachers’
Retirement System, 10 Corporate Woods Drive, Albany, NY 12211-2395.

Funding Policy - TRS is non-contributory except for empioyees who joined the System after
July 27, 1876, who contribute 3% of their salary. Pursuant to Article 11 of Education Law,
contributions are established annually for TRS by the New York State Teachers' Retirement Board.
Contribution rates are actuarially determined and based upon membership tier and plan.
Contributions consist of a regular pension contribution. Contribution rates for the plan year ended
June 30, 1897 are as follows:

Tiers Regular

1-4 357%

Contributions made to the System for the current and two preceding years were as follows:

TRS
1997 & 164,728
1996 107,780
1995 187,673

These condributions were equal to 100% of the actuanally required contributions for each
respective fiscal year.

TIAAICREF is an optional retirement program, designated by the trustees of the State
University of New York, which has been made available by the College to eligible employees. This
System is a privately operated defined contribution retirement plan. The College assumes no
hability for the financial status of TIAA/CREF members’ accounts other than payment of
contributions. Participation eligibility as well as contributory and non-contributory requirements are
established by the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law. Benefits are determined
by the amount of individual accumulations and the refirernent income option selected.

Al benefits are fully vestad after thirteen months of participation in TIAA/CREF . New York
State Education Law establishes the contribution rate for each employee electing this optional
retirement program. TIAA/CREF is non-contributory, except for employees who joined after July 1,
1976 who contribute 3% of their salary. TIAA/CREF allows members to make extra payments at
any time. These extra payments are not matched by the Coilege. it is the policy of the Coliege to
fund pension costs as incurred. For the plan vear ended August 31, 1897, the College incurred

$1.331.824 in pension expense undsr this Flan,
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Compensated Absences

Under the terms of existing coliective bargaining agreements, certain employees of the
primary govermnment may accumulate sick leave. Upon separation of service, employees,
depending on the criteria defined in the contract, are compensated for accurmnulated leave in excess
of 165 days, up to a maximum of 35 days. The primary government is also obligated to pay
employees accrued vacation pay up to a maximum of 77 days, depending upon the contract. The
expenditure/expense related to such vested accumulated vacation leave was accrued in the
operating funds based upon pay rates currently in effect. The vested accumulated sick leave was
deemed immaterial.

Linder the terms of existing collective bargaining agreements, the College is not obligated to
pay accumulated sick leave to employees upon separation of service. The College is, however,
obligated to pay employees’ accrued vacation up to an established limit. At August 31, 1997, the
expense reiated to vested vacation pay for employees was accrued based upon pay rates currently
in effect. Accrued vacation pay aggregated approximately $1,095 000 and was included in accrued
liabilities.

The employees of the industriai Development Agency may accumuiate vacation leave.
Upon separation of service, these employees are compensated up to a maximum of 50 days. The
liability for the Industrial Development Agency was deemed immaterial.

The Soiid Waste Management Authority and the Soil and Water Conservation District have
no full-time employees and therefore do not require a compensated absence policy.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The County offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all County empioyees, permits them to
defer a portion of their salary untll future years Participation in the plan is optional. The deferred
compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable
emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rghts
purchased with those amounts and all income attributable to those amounts, property or rights are
{until paid or made availabie to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of
the County {without being restricted to provisions of benefits under the plan) subject only o the
claims of the County's general creditors. Participants’ rights under the plan are equal to those of
general creditors of the County in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account
for each participant.

it is the opinion of the County's management that the County has no liability for losses under
the plan but does have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor.
The County believes that it is unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general
creditors in the fulure.

investments are managed by the plan's trustee under several investment options. The

choice of the investment option is made by the participants. The carrying amount and market value
as of December 31, 1997 was $62, 882,122,
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C.

Revenues, Expenditures and Operating Transfers

Operating Transfers

Operating transfers i and out by fund for the primary government and component unit for
the vear ended December 31, 1987 were as follows,

Transfers In Transfers Out
Primary Componernt Primary Component
Fund Government Linit Government Unit

General Fund $ 4942130 % - % 23865872 % 11186770
County Road Fund 5,941 422 - 42 262 -
Road Machinery Fund 1,299,562 - 3,966 -
Community Development

Fund - - 84,548 -
Sewer District Fund 1,376,185 . 7,526,303 -
Debt Service Fund 19,605,819 - 5,268,794 -
Capital Projects Fund 587 500 - 733131 "
Home and Infirmary Fund 4 707,068 - - -
General Services Fund 55,180 - - -
Community College Fund - 11196770 - -

$ 38524876 & 11196770 $ 38524876 F 11196770

Post-Employment Health Care Benefits

Iry addition to providing pension benefits, the primary govermment and its College component
unit provides certain health care benefils for retired employees. The various coflective bargaining
agreements stipulate the employees covered and the percentage of contribution. Coniributions oy
the primary government and its College component unit may vary according to length of service.
Substantially all employees may become eligible for those benefits if they reach normat retirernent
age while working for these entities. The cost of retiree heaith care benefits is recognized as an
expenditure as claims are paid. Expenditures/expenses for the primary government in 1987
aggregated 36,676 309 and were paid on behalf of 1 267 refirees  Expenditures for the College
aggregated approximately $1,181,000 for 210 retirees for the year ended August 31, 1987, The Soil
and YWater Conservation District, industrial Development Agency and the Sclid Waste Management
Authority did not incur expenditures/expenses for retiree health care benefits.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

NCTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1997

Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds and Account Groups (Continued}

0.

Fund Balances
Reserved

Encumbrances ouistanding have been reserved as it is the County's intention to honor the
contracts in process at year-end. The subsequent year's appropriations will be amended to provide
authority to complete the transactions.

The Reserve for Prepaid Expenditures has been established to account for retirement
payments made in advance. The reserve indicates that these funds are not “available” for
appropriation or expenditure even though they are a component of current assets.

The Reserve for Law Enforcement represents the unexpended balance of the forfeiture of
seized crime properties. These amounts must be used in the subsequent fiscal year for law
enforcement purposes as prescribed by the State of New York,

The Reserve for Stop - DWI Program represents State revenues that must be used in
accordance with the parameters of the Driving While Intoxicated Program. The uses are prescribed
by State Law.

The Reserve for E811 are funds provided pursuant to-a State directive to be used for a
County-wide Emergency 811 Telephone System.

The Reserve for Long-Terrn Receivable represents funds set aside 1o indicate the long-term
nature of a court ordered deposit. These funds are not "available” for appropriation or expenditure
even though they are a component of current assets.

The Reserve for Social Service Programs are funds set aside in the Trust and Agency Fund
for certain New York State operated social service programs.

The Heserve for Debt Service are funds that were derived from the investment of debt
proceeds to be used specifically for debt redemption. The County's infended use of these funds, as
weil as State law, requires that these funds be used only for redemption of debt in future periods.

The Reserve for Student Loans are funds provided to account for resources available for
loans to students.

The Reserve for Parklands has been established pursuant to New York State Law. These
amounts represent funds received by the County to be used for parkland improvements.

Unreserved

Designations of funds balance are not legally required segregations but represent intended
use for a specific purpose. The following reflect the County's designations at December 31, 1897
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
DECEMBER 31, 1987

Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds and Account Groups (Continued)

Designated for Affordable Housing - This designation established by the County Legislature
is used to segregate a portion of fund balance to be utilized for the purpose of creating an
affordable housing program in the County.

Designation for Section 8 - This designation of fund balance represents surpius monies from
the Section 8 program which is to be used to fund certain program costs.

Designated for Transportation Projects - This designation of fund balance represents
surpius monies recetved for fransportation projects which are to be used to fund transportation
capital project costs,

Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures - General and Special Revenue Funds - At
December 31, 1897, the County Legisiature has designated that $5,500,000 of the fund balance of
the General Fund and $1,328,571 of the fund balance of the Sewer District Fund be used in 1998.

Note 4 - Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies

Litigation

The County receives numerous notices of claims for damages occurring generafly from alleged
negligence and civil ights violations. The filing of such notice of claim commences a statutory period for
mitiating judicial action. The County Attorney has indicated that he is not aware of any such action which
would have a significant adverse impact on the County's financial condition, except as described below.

The County is defendant in numerous pending tax certiorari proceedings, the results of which
cannot be determined at this time. Any future refunds resulting from adverse settlements will be funded in
the year payments are made.

The United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) conducted audits of costs incurred oy
the Sewer District for which the District sought funding under the EPA Wastewater Treatment Construction
Grants. in June 1990, Region Il of the EPA issued determinations on the audits of several grants. The
audit determinations declared that a total of approximately $1.3 million in expenditures were “unallowable”
for grant funding and sought the retum of approximately $250,000 in previcusly paid grant funds. In July
1994, the Sewer District appealed these determinations. In letters dated April 19, 1997 and May 3, 1897,
Region il determined to accept approximately $600,000 in funds previously found unailowable under one of
the grants. Counsel has indicated that they anticipate the EPA will issue determinations on the appeals of
the other grants during 1998,

in March 1992, Region li of the EPA also issued a determination that approximately $1.2 million of
expenditures of a specific grant was unaliowable for grant funding. In February 1993, the New York State
Department of Environmental Conservation on behalf of the EPA, issued its determination of final allowable
costs of another grant, ruling that a total of approximately $7 million was unaliowabie for grant funding. In
September 1997, Region 1 issued its determination on costs of another grant that approximately $3.1
million was unallowable for grant funding. The Sewer District has appealed these determinations and is in
the process of preparing additional submissions in support of these appeais. It has been indicated that
there will be no decision regarding these appeals until the latter part of 1998,
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Concluded)
DECEMBER 31, 1997

Note 4 - Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies (Continued)

Risk Management
Liability Claims

The County is currently seif-insured for general liability, property damage and medical malpractice
claims. Conventional insurance is not purchased for catastrophic losses.

Workers' Compensation

The County and certain towns and willages within the County are participants in a County-wide
workers' compensation program. Premiums are assessed on each participant based upon a formula
invoiving payroll and the actual historical claims experience of such participant. Costs relating to the
litigation of claims are charged to expenditures as incurred. The County has secured conventional
insurance coverage for individual losses in excess of $500,000. Seftled claims from these risks have not
exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

Health Benefits

The County is self-insured for health benefits for their employees. A plan administrator has been
retained to review and approve all claims. The County has purchased a stop loss policy 1o imit the
exposure to an annually agreed upon amount Seftled claims from these risks have not exceeded
commercial coverage in any of the past three years.

Unemployment Benefits

The County is self-insured for claims arising from unemployment benefit cases.
Contingencies

The primary govemnment and the College participate in various Federal grant programs. These
programs are subject to program compliance audits pursuant to the Single Audit Act of 1884, This audit is
currently in process and the report will be issued under separate cover. Accordingly, the primary
government and the College’s compliance with appiicable grant requirements will be established at a

future date. The amount of expenditures which may be disaliowed by the granting agencies cannot be
determined at this time, although the entities anticipate such amounts, if any, to be immatenal.
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GENERAL
FUND

The General Fund constitutes the primary operating fund of
the County in that it includes all revenues and expenditures
not required by law to be accounted for in other funds.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996

1997 1996
ASSETS LA
Cash and Eguivalents:
Demand deposits $ 40988782 % 5 448 007
Certificates of deposit 18,000 000 8.000.000
Petly cash 3,000 3,000
Departmental cash 12,790 12,590
238725872 13,461.597
Taxes Receivable:
Tax sale certificates 16,279,068 23,088 528
Tax instaltments 4 665 845 5105878
Returned school and village taxes 13,455 741 17.078.714
Property acquired for taxes 123,468 123468
14528122 45,396 585
Alowance for uncollectible taxes . {2.B50,000 (3,312,000
31878122 42 084 580
hher Receivables:
Accounts 11,630,093 11,203,083
State and Federat aid 47 136,546 43,630,381
Due from other governments ..5398085 6315103
84 164 704 61,148 577
Aflowance for uncoltectible amounts (442186  (442196)
63722508 60,706,381
Prepaid Expenditures o 1eg321 343185
Total Assets $ 119.542523 § 116,505 762
LABILITIES AND EUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 11817703 3 9483182
Accrued liabilities 18,862 481 21,184 2439
Due to other governmenis 1.318.388 1,751,307
Bue to schoot districts 14 394,052 16,694,173
Due to other funds 8.228.725 11,493,088
Deferred revenues - Taxes 15,503,330 20,800,327
Deferred revenues - Other 453,087 700,961
Revenue anticipation note payable 5,000,000 15,000,000
Total Liabilities B5377 784 97117277
Fund Balance:
Reserved for encumbrances 800 162 1,193,348
Reserved for prepaid expendiures 168,321 343185
Reserved for law enforcement 152 550 2,270
Reserved for Stop - DW! Program 109,764 133,972
Reserved for E911 174,585 -
Unreserved:
Besignated for Section 8 92,474 82474
Designated for subsequent vear's expenditures 5 500,000 1,500,000
Undesignated 27168823 16,123228
Totat Fund Balance 34,164,759 19,478 485
Total Liabiities and Fund Balance $ 119542523 § 116585762
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996

88T
Variance
Ciriginal Revised Favorable
Budget Budget Actal  (Unfavorable)
Revenues:

Real property taxes $ 48128708 % 48126708 % 53378206 3 5,252 498
Other tax dems 6,440,000 6,440 000 6.519,998 79,996
MNon-property taxes 749,290,000 78,290,000 82 200,180 2,810,150
Deparimental income 22,646 169 22,817 069 22,031 476 (B85 ,5589;
Use of money and property 1,385,000 1,418,220 1,844 825 426,705
Licenses and permits 795,000 795,000 TI5, 771 {19,229}
Fines and forfeitures 525,928 534 072 617 186 83,114
Sale of property and

compensation for loss 21,500 21,500 20,579 {921}
interfund revenues 3843430 3,844 181 3,847 385 3,204
State aid 60,311,855 64 904 536 60,391 438 (4,513,098
Federal aid 32.867.862 34,231,847 29,058 1749 {5.173.768)
Miscellaneous 1,413,000 1,440 484 1,631,066 180 582

Total Revenues 257778552 263883727 262317401 {1,646 326)
Expenditures:

Current:

General government support 29 100,254 28 083,215 26 351,172 2,732,043

Educsation 18,009 528 19.014,382 17 669 155 1,345 237

Public safety 30,082,801 31,567 858 29,035,303 2.472 552

Health 22 A76,761 24 865079 22 765, 864 2,088 215

Transportation 13,046 244 14 060,794 14,060,754 -

Economic opportunity and
development 110,292, 144 112,401,383 102,370,787 16,030,556

Culture and recreation 304 317 548 037 503,038 43,001

Home and communily services 3,266 700 3,433 487 3358911 74 576

Employee benefils 305,000 726,291 598,668 26622

Debt Service - Interest 1057500 1057500 867508 189,992
Total Expenditures 228,941,350 236696003 217682209 19,013,794
Excess of Revenues

Over Expendifures 28,835 202 27,287 724 44636 192 17,387 468
Uther Financing Sources (Usesy

Cperating transfers in 4 870,802 4 G55 450 4,942 130 {13,220

Cperating transfers out (24,008,334 {24,350 644) (23,885 872} 484 772

Operating transfers out -

Component unit _(11.198770)  (11279.336) _ (11,196,770) . 82566
Total Other Financing Uses {30,335 200 {30,874 530) (30,120512y 554018
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures and Other Uses {1,500,000) {3,406 806 14 514 680 17,921,488

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 1,800,000 3.406 805 18,478 485 16,071.679
Residual Equity Transfer S P 171,584 7?%;"5,94,.
Fund Balance - End of Year ® o B .- % 34784758 5 34164759
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Original
Budget

43,583,867

8,700,000
76,000,000
22 626,056

1,565,000

830,000
488,802

17,000
2,861.815
63,408,208
30,444 758
1,418,000

254 546 507

29,0086 209
21725724
28837141
21,578,388
12.827 453

108,690,852
829.048
2.689230
497,300
1,246,528

227,728,583

26,817,924

4,552,529
(25,682,553)
(10.687.800)

(31,817.924)

(5.000.000)

5,000,000

Revised
Budget

48,833,867
5,450,000
78,000,000
23,027,268
1,065,000
830,000
456,301

17.0G0
2.966 085
67.801613
31,698,722
1,434,924

260,720,760

25,853,068
21,725,724
25,865 429
24 382,508
13,838,578
110,147 219
916,611
2,780,204
447 909
1,246 528

235,363,859
25,356.901
4,676,781
(26,116,393
(10,687 900}

(32,127 512;

(B.770811)

6770611

%

5..

Varnance
Favorable

Actual (Unfavorable)
55727856 % 6,893,989
5,357,491 (92 .500)
75554 316 (445 684)
21206215 {1,827 053
1,604 634 539,634
778,343 (51,657}
482 188 {14,113y
30,323 13,323
3,481,305 515 240
60,058,505 (7,843.108)
28,802,020 (2,896,702}
1,675,048 240124
255752 244 (4,968,516}
26,086 819 3.866 249
17,761,342 3.964,382
28,503,784 1.3681.645
22,848,339 1,534 259
13,520,351 318,227
100,618,304 G527 915
§05.101 11,510
2.584 402 205,802
391.261 106,635
1,246,528 -
214467231 20,896,628
41285013 15928112
4679 441 2,680
(25,307 777y 508 618
(10.887,800) -
{31,316 236} 811,276
9,968.777 16,735,388
9,508,708 2,739,097
19478485 § 19476485
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SPECIAL REVENUE
FUNDS

The Special Revenue Funds are established to account for the proceeds
of specific revenue sources (other than proprietary, expendable trusts or
capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for certain
defined purposes. The special revenue funds of the County are as
follows:

Coﬁnty Road Fund - The County Road Fund was established
pursuant to New York State Highway Law and is used to account
for the maintenance and repair of County roads and bridges and
snow removal costs.

Road Machinery Fund - The Road Machinery Fund is used to
account for the purchase, repair and maintenance of highway
machinery, tools and equipment and for the purchase,
construction and maintenance of buildings for the storage and
repair of highway machinery and equipment.

Community Development Fund - The Community Development
Fund is wsed to account for projects financed by entitlements
from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Sewer District Fund - The Sewer Disirict Fund is used to account
for the operation and maintenance of the Countv's sewer
facilities.




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMEBEER 31, 1897

(With Comparative Totals for 1996)

ASSETS

Cash:
Demand deposits
Certificates of deposit
Deparimental cash

fnvestments

Receivables:
Accounts
t.oans
State and Federal aid
Due from other funds

Prepaid Expenditures

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payabie
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues

Total Liabilities

Fund Batances:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for prepaid expenditures
Heserved for long-term recevable
Lirreserved:
Designated for affordable housing
Designated for subsegquent year's
expenditures
Undesignated

Totat Fund Balances

Totat Liabilities and Fund Balances

318

County Road Community

Road Machinery Developrnent
Fund . Fund  Fund

5 58768 & 185 % 125

100 . N

59,869 188 125

7.800 - -

- - 738,329

528,181 - 183,842

536931 571,978 155,378

1,073,712 571,978 1,087 848

_____ 11,061 1,150 -

$ 1144842 5 573313 § 1087774

& 402 148 % 328,186 3% -

646,108 43,885 124,320

o - 738,454

..1,048,256 372081 862774

20,870 8,929 -

11,081 1,150 -

- - 225,000

64455 190,153 -

96,386 201,232 225,000

$ 1144642 $ 573313 § 1087774




Sewer
Distrnict
Fund

$ 421,938
450,000

...300

872,239

..10.510.000

271,807

226,582

158,032

856 231

12,261

$ 12,080,731

. Totals

18587

$ 482 018
450,000

932 418
10,510,000
279207
738,328

948,715
1,422,319

_..A00

o 1ese

$ 96,480
400
...96,890
10,345,000
253,301
720,532

341,405
730,070

3,389,570

24472

$ 14,856,460

 2,045.30

$ 12,538,255

$ 875571
953,540

5 1605815
1,767 853

781,124

1,871,781

4,154 862

$ 925827
1,542,668
146,035
794,764

3,409,384

870,502
12,261
72,913

1,329,571
8,093,703

10,178,950
5 12,050,731

701,301
24,472
72,913

225000

1,329 571
8,348 311

16.701,568

804,360
51,067
70,111

225,000

1,324,036

8,654,257

- 5,128,881

$..14,856,460

$ 12538255
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1967

{With Comparative Totals for 1896)

County Road Community
Road Machinery Development
_ Fund Fund  Fund
Revenues:
Reatl property taxes % - § - % -
DCepartmental income - - 27,203
Use of money and property - - 13877
Licenses and permits 20.913 - .
Fines and forfeitures 10,379 - -
Sale of property and compensation
for loss - 13,719 -
interfund revenues 158,068 - -
State aid 840,270 - -
Federal aid 206,624 - 4,157 540
Miscellanecus 5,481 - -
Total Revenues 1,035,735 13,718 4,198,420
Expenditures:
Current.
Transportation 6,522 544 1,350,838 -
Economic opportunity and development - - 4,113,872
Home and community services . . .
Employee benefits - - -
Debt Service - Interest - _ - -
Total Expenditures 6,527 544 1,350,636 4113872
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (5482808) (1336817} 84548
Other Financing Sources (Usas):
Operating transfers in 5941422 1,298,562 -
Operating transfers out . (42262)  (3966)  (84,548)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 5899160 1295596 (84548)
Excess {Deficiency} of Revenues and
Other Sources Over Expenditures
and Other Uses 416,351 {41,321} -
Fund Balances (Deficis) - Beginning of Year (319965 0 242653 2256000
Fund Balances - End of Year $....96386 5 201232 % 245000



Sawer
District
Fund

15,703,267
88,372
1.215.59%
230

22,781
73,303

4,703
815,932

17,928,118

9,172,043
1,150,081
...259.200

(.10.581.324
7,347,785

1,376,185
(7.526,303)
(6.150,118)

1,187 677
8,981,273

.. Totals

1647

9%

§ 15703207 $ 15786463

125,575 146,240
1,224 268 354,318
20,913 12,705
10,608 10,178
36,500 454
156,068 166,166
713,573 820,874
4,368 867 3,038,887
821413 466207
23,180,993 21,402.492
7.873.180 B.408 402
4,113,872 2,802,289
9,172,043 9,140,822
1,150,081 1,295,320
259,200 416,839
22,568,376 22063672
B12817 (661.180)
8,617,169 7,693,121
{7857,079) (7454284
960,090 238,837
1,572.707 (422 343)
9128861 ©551204

§ 10,178,950 $ 10,701,568 $ 9,128,861
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COUNTY ROAD FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1986

ASSETS

Cash:
Demand deposds
Departmental cash

Receivabies:
Accounts
State and Federai aid
Due from other funds

Prepaid Expenditures

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)

L iabilities:
Accounts pavable
Accrued liabilities

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance (Deficit);
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for prepaid expenditures
Unreserved and undesignated

Total Fund Balance (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance (Deficit)

73

1es7

$ 59769 &
100

59,869
7.600
529.181
..536,931
1073712
11,061

$ 1144642 %

21,079
100

21178

1,638
76,820

_247.728

325,987

24,602

371,768

$ 402,148 $
646,108

1,048,256
20870
11.061

..B4.455

96,386

$‘.: E T i 14476’42 5 T

93,982

597,751

691,733

23229
24,602

. (367,796)
_ {319,965)

371,768



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK
COUNTY ROAD FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1897 AND 1996

Revenues:
Licenses and pernmiis
Fines and forfeitures
interfund revenues
State aid
Federal aid
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures - Current
Transportation

Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Lises):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Total Other Financing Sources

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources Over Expenditures

Fund Balance (Deficit) - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance (Deficit) - End of Year

Criginal

__ Budget

$

10,750
15,000
219,000
704,172
286,250
...A42,283

1,277 435

_.7,146.300

(5,868.865)

5,911,128
(42,263)

5,868,865

1987

YVariance

Revised Favorable
Budget ~  Actual  (Unfavorable)
3 16,75G % 20913 % 10,163
15000 10,379 {4621
218,000 156,068 (62,932}
704172 840 270 {63,802}
286 250 206 624 (78,626}
. 42263 5481 (36,782)
1,277 435 1.039735 (237.700)
7226896 6522544 704,352
(5,949 461) {5,482 809 466,652
5941422 5,841 422 -
(42,263} (42,262) 1
5,899,159 5,898,160 ot
(50,302} 418 351 488 B53
______ 50,302 (319,965)  (370,267)
$ o0 . .96386 5 96386
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Variance
Original Revised Favorable
Budget Budget - Actal - (Unfavorable)

8.000 $ 8,000 % 12,705 % 4,705
15,000 15.000 7.163 (7 837}
473,260 473,260 166,166 (307,094)
704,172 704,172 628,996 (75,176}
141,998 149,198 254,568 105,370
42852 42852 6210 (36642

1,385,282 1,392,482 1,075,808 (316,874}

6681483 7083778 6949773 134,005

(5.296,201)  (5.691.296)  (5873,965) (182,669

5,339,053 5,540,593 5,540,593 -
...\42852) (42852) (42852 -

- 5.296,201 5497741 5497741 -

- (193,555} (376,224) (182,669)
... 183,555 56,259 (137,296)

I = 8 (319965) § (318,965

75
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YOURK

ROAD MACHINERY FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1986

1897 1996
ASSETS el el
Cash - Demand deposits $ 185 % 511
Due from Other Funds 571978 382207
Prepaid Expenditures 180 - Z481
Total Assets $ 573313 & 385179
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 328,196 % 106,116
Accrued liabilities ....43.885 36510
Total Liabilities ....372081 0 142,826
Fund Balance:
Reserved for encumbrances 9,929 138,149
Reserved for prepaid expenditures 1,150 2481
Unreserved and undesignated L 18653 101,943
Total Fund Balance . 201232 242,553
Tetal Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 573313 § 385179

76



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

ROAD MACHINERY FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1896

Revenues,
Departmentat income
Sale of property and compensation for loss
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expendifures - Current -
Transportation

Deficiency of Revenues
Owver Expendiures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating fransfers in
Operating transfers out
Totai Other Financing Sources

Fxcess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Sources Over Expendifures

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

Variance

Original Revised Favorable
Budget Budget  Actual (Unfavorabie)
$ - % - 3% - % -
- 13,308 13,719 411
3ser - (3,967}
- 17,275 13,719 (3,556}
L. 1285985 1,451,019 1,350,836 160,383
 (1,295,595)  (1,433,744)  (1,336,917) 96,827
1,299,562 1,299,562 1,299,562 -
_______________________ (3.967) {3967y  (3%e6) !
1295595 1295595  1.295,596 B
{138,148} {41321 495 828
138,148 242,553 104,404
$ o 8 - % 201232 § 2017232
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1996
Variance
Original Revised Favorable
Budget ~ Budget ~ Actual {Unfavorable)

s .3 310§ 310
454 454
- (4.020)

4020 4020

4,020 4,020 764 (3.256)
1.243.231 1663573 1458829 204,944

| (1239211)  (1650553)  (1457,865) 201688

1,243 231 1,261,961 1,261,961 -
(4.020)  (4021) (4.021) g

o Ye3szin 1,257,940 1257840 -

(401,613) (199,925 201,688
- 401613 442478 40865

%o B 242553 5 242553
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1897 AND 1996

ASSETS
Cash - Demand deposils
Receivables:
| oans

State and Federat aid
Due from other funds

Total Assets

Liabiites:
Accrued lighilities
Deferred revenues
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance -
Designated for affordable housing

Total Liabiities and Fund Balance

749

1887 1996

$ 125 38,684
738,329 720,532
193,942 124 866
155378 100134
1,087,649 945,532
$ 1087774 984,216
$ 124320 -
738,454 759,216
862,774 758,216
..225,000 225,000

$ 1087774 § 984218



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMMURNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

i FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Revenues:
Departmental income
Use of money and property
Federal aid
Total Revenues

Expenditures - Current -
Economic opporiunity and development

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Uses -
Operating transfers out

Excess of Revenues and
Over Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

80

1897 e

Yariance

Revised Favorable
Budget =~ Actual  (Unfavorable)
- 3 27263 % 27.203
- 13,677 13677
4,398,000 4,157,540 {241,460)
4 3684 000 4 198 420 {200,580
4314452 4.113,872 200,580
B4 548 84 548 -
(84,548} (84,548) -
225,000 225.000
0 $...225000 % 225000



Revised
 Budget

3,584 601

3,594,601
3,512,601
82,000

(82,000}

$

Actuat

1986

Varanes
Favorable

31722 3
13,341
2775927

2,820,991

2,802,289

18,702

(18.702)

225,000

{(Unfavorable)

31,723
13.341

_ (B18674)

(773.610)
710,312
(63,298)

83,298

225,000

-229000 3

81
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

SEWER DISTRICT FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996

ASSETS

Cash:
Demand deposits
Certificates of deposi
Departrnental cash

investments
Receivables:
Accounts

State and Federal aid
Due from other funds

Frepaid Expenditures

Total Assels

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabiiities
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Reserved for encumbrances
Reserved for prepaid expenditures
Reserved for long-term receivable
Unreserved:
Designated for subsequent year's
expendiures
Undesignated

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabibties and Fund Balance

1997 1996
% 421838 % 35,216
450,000 -
300 300
872,239 36,516
10,510,000 10,345,000
271,807 251,663
226 582 139,818
158,032 -
656,231 31 582
12,261 23,994
$ 12,050,731 $ 10,797,092
% B75571 % 725,828
953 540 808 407
- 146 (35
42,670 35,548
§70.502 642 982
12,261 23,884
72,843 70,111
1,328,571 1,324 036
....8083703 6,920,150
10,178.950 8981273
$ 12,050,731 % 10,797,092




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

SEWER DISTRICT FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

N FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996

Revenues:

Real property taxes -
sewer benefif tax
Departmental income
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Sale of property and compensation

for loss
State aid
Federal aid

Miscellansous
Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Curent:

General government support
Home and community services
Employee henefits
Debt Service - interest
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out

Total Other Financing Uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

B3

Variance

Originai Revised Favorable
Budget  Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
15413107 & 15413107 & 15703207 & 290,100
35.000 35,000 98.372 63,372
760,000 700,000 1,210,591 510,591
- - 230 230
- 22,781 22,781
- 288754 73,303 (215,451)
- - 4703 4,703
230,554 230,554 815,932 585,378
16378861 16667415 17829119 1,261,704
300,000 273,168 - 273,168
9,578,716 10,538,528 8,172,043 1,366,485
1,407,900 1,407 800 1,150,081 257,818
258200 259,200 259,200 -
11545816 12478797  10,581324 1897473
4832845 4188618 7,547,795 3188177
1,402,094 1,402 084 1,376,185 {25,909)
{7,658,975)  (7.558.975) (7,526,303} 32,672
(6.156.881)  (6,156.881)  (6,150.118) 6.763
(1,324 036) (1,968.263) 1,187 677 3,165,940
1,324,036 1,868,263 8981273 7,013,010
- 3 - $ 10,178,950 §$ 10,178,950



$

1998

Varianes
Criginal Revised Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
15,680,107 15680107 $ 15786463 % 86,356

105,000 105.000 114,207 8,207
600,000 800,000 940,977 340,977
- 3,015 3,018

- 160,548 191,878 31,330

- 8.392 8,392 -
230,880 - 230,980 458,987 228017
16626087 16795027 17,504,929 708,902
425,000 281,840 - 281,840
8,785,853 10,608,307 9.140.822 1,468 485
1,384,000 1,384,000 1,285,320 88,680
416,839 416,839 416,839

12011692 12691986  10.852,981 1,839,005
. 4814385 4103041 6651948 2,548,907

880.967 880,967 880,567 8.600

(7,135,981 (7,388,781; (7,388,709) 72
(6255.014)  (6,507.814)  (6.498,142) 9,672
{1,640,618} (2.404,773) 163,806 2558579
1640618 2,404,773 8,827 467 5,422,694

$ 8981273 § 8981273

24
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DEBT SERVICE
FUND

The Debt Service Fund is provided to account for the
accumulation of resources to be used for the redemption
of principal and interest on general long-term debt.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

DEBT SERVICE FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1886

ASSETS
Cash:
Demand deposits

Certificates of deposit
Cash with fiscal agent

Investments
Receivables:

Accounts

State and Federal aid

Due from component unit
Due from other funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accrued liabilities
Bond interest and matured bonds payable
Total Liabilities
Fund Balance:
Reserved for long-term receivable
Reserved for debt service
Total Fund Balance

Total Lihiliies and Fund Balance

85

1887 1996
$ 160,887 $ 945642
550,000 300,000
326,508 78,728
1,037,395 1,324 370
14,380,134 13121804
212,971 269,803
338,887 145,897
840,000 1,215,000
88,677 726,638
1480535 2,357,338
$ 16,898,064 $ 16,803,512
$ 9,054 $ 9,054
326,508 78,728
_..336,562 87,782
631,495 1,052,971
15,931,007 15,662,759
16,562,502 16,715,730
$ 16,898,064 $ 16803512




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK
DEBT SERVICE FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996

Revenues:
Use of money and property
State aid
Federal aid
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Debt Service:
Serial bonds:
Frincipal
interest
Total Expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues Over
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses}:
COperating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Totai Other Financing Sources

Deficiency of Revenues and
Other Sources Over Expenditures

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

$

JAser B

Variance

Criginal Revised Favorable
Budget Budget ~  Actual (Unfavorable)
- % - % 2908802 $ 2908902
- 2,134,881 2,134,881
- 270,567 270,567
88,557 88,557 575,488 486 941
__________ 88,557 88,557 5880848 5802291
12,708,573 12,708 573 12,708,224 349
6705837 6705837 6672877 32,960
18,414 410 19,414 410 19,381,101 33,309
(18,325853)  (18.325.853) (13,480.253) 5835600
19,427,947 19,427 947 19,605,819 177.872
..(6.235400)  (6,235400)  (6,268,794) (33,394)
13192547 13,192,547 13,337,025 144478
(6,133,306) (6,133.306) (153,228} 5980078
. B133.306 6,133,306 16,715,73C 10582424
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1996

Variance
Criginal Revised Favorable
_Budget ~  Budget ~  Actual  (Unfavorable)
- % - 5 2831041 3 2931041
- - 756,431 756,431
- - 64,398 64,398
- 18,288 386,106 367807

- 18288 = 4137876 4,118,677

11625010 11644696 11,605,840 38,856
7,329,937 7,348,236 7273528 74,707
18,954,947 16,992,932 18,879,369 113,563

(18,854.947) (18.974,633) (14,741,393) 4,233,240

19,060,814 19070514 18,547,934 (522,580)
(5.368,967)  (5378,567) _ (5,378.567) -
13,691,947 13691947 13 169,367 (522 586)

(5,263,000)  (5282,686)  (1,572,026) 3,710,660
5263000 5282686 18,287,756 13,005,070

- 8 - §$ 16715730 $ 16,715730

87
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CAPITAL PROJECTS
FUND

The Capital Projects Fund is utilized to account for financial
resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities other than those financed by
proprietary funds.




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 1897 AND 1986

ASSETS
Cash,
Demand deposits

Time deposits
Certificates of deposit

investments
State and Federal Ald Receivabie
Restricted Assets - investments

Totat Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and retained percentages
Due to other governments

Due to other funds

Bond anticipation notes payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:

Reservad for encumbrances

Reserved for parklands

Unreserved:
Designated for transportation projects
Undesignated

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Baiance

1897 ..19%6

$ 42814 $ 68818
837,729 652,272
17,910,000 36,745,000
18,790,543 37,466,090
24528000 10,844,393
1,437 761 1,126,912
13,493,155 7,240,851
$ 48245459 § 56678246
$ 2,806,135 2,286,248
230,568 180,831
742,412 473,758
68000000 18,791,000
10,679,115 21731837
4,962,081 839,852
194,000 194,000
3,941,408 3,041,408
28572855  29,971.149
37670344 34,946,409

$.48,249459 3 56676246

B8



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996

1997 1996
Revenues:
State aid $ 1785715 $ 6098046
Federal aid 3434 659 2.444 754
Misceflaneous ...863 23328
Total Revenuas 5,221.077 B.776.028
Expenditures - Capital outiay 16,440081  17270,776
Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures (11219.014)  (8.494,748)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from serial bonds 13,886,060 & 365 000
Operating transfers in 587 500 720,550
Operating transfers out (733,131)  (321,613)
Total Other Financing Sources 13,760,368 6,763,937
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Cther Sources
Over Expendiiures 2,541,355 (1.730,811)
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 34,946 409 36,677,220
Residual Equity Transfer 182,580 -
Fund Balance - End of Year $ 37670344 $ 34,946,408

B9
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ENTERPRISE
FUND

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private
enterprises or where the governing body has decided that
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses
incurred and/or net income is necessary for management
accountability. Enterprise funds are used to account for
those operations that provide services to the public. The
operations of the Summit Park Hospital/Rockland County
Infirmary are recorded as an enterprise fund,




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND - HOME AND INFIRMARY FURND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996

AGSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and Equivalents

Receivables:
Accounts

Accounts - Patient care
Due from other funds

Allowance for uncollectible amounts

Prepaid Expenses
inventories
Total Current Assets
Fixed Assets;
Land
Buildings
improvements other than bulldings

Equipment
Construction-in-progress

Less: Accumulaied depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Current Liabiiities:
Accounts payvabie
Acerued Habilities
Current maturities of bonds payable
Bond anticipation note payable
Current portion of due tG retirerment system
Uue to other governments

Total Current Liabilities

Bonds Payable, less current maturities
Due to Retirement System, less current portion

Total Liabilities
Fund Balance - Unreserved and undesignated

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

3

$

1997

1996

$ 4700874 $ 5161824
569 383 838 470
14,111,583 13,821,246
5123525 3024555
18,804 481 17,785 271
(2944237)  (2.618.946)
16,860,254 15,166,325
452,419 172,880
307,106 239.838
22320653 20740867
438 504 380,000
16,221,905 16,221,805
345 975 345 875
27,207 861 24 941 487
_______ 3.468,959 4,124,603
47 883,204 45,893 850
(26,583202)  (24.906.195)
21,100,002 21 087 755
43420655 $ 41828622
1768682 & 1,472,083
12,583 376 11,374 587
1,B88.018 1,825 407
- 1,235,000
485 424 358,574
1096436 3742858
17 831,948 20,008,509
10,286 551 10,274 478
1236178 1153461
289364 677 31,436 448
14,055,978 10,392,174
43420655 § 41828622



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND - HOME AND INFIRMARY FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1987 AND 1986

Fund Balance - End of Year

1897 1996
Operating Revenuss:
Departmental Charges:
Net patient service revenues:
Rehabilitation and skilled nursing facility $ 37475584 ¢ 33070825
Mental health 25,136,412 24 856 617
Services provided by Rockland County 2,378,357 2,183,513
Total Patient Revenues 64,990,353 59811055
Miscellaneous 1,987,665 1,830,527
Total Operating Revenues 66978018 61741582
‘Operating Expenses:
Administrative and general expenses 10,028,260 10,668,627
Salaries and wage expenses 33,517,980 31,607 268
Pension and employee benefits 11,290,071 11,317 459
Supplies and other expenses 7687678 7,238,761
Depreciation 1,677,007 1,751,089
Provision for bad debts 3,334,772 2,210,921
Total Operating Expenses 67,545,769 64,795,165
Laoss From Operations {567.751) {2.053,583)
Non-Operating Cxpenses -
interest on indebtedness 475513 367,082
Net Loss Before Operating Transfers (1.043,264) (3,420,665}
Operating Transfers In 4707088 6821195
MNet Income 3,663,804 3,400,530
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 10,382,174 6,991 6844

§ 14055978 $ 10,392,174



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

ENTERPRISE FUND - HOME AND INFIRMARY FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 1997 AND 1996

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Loss from operations

Adpistments to reconcile net ioss to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Lrepreciation and amortization
Provision for bad debts
Changes in operating assels and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable - Patient care
Frepaid expenses
invertories
Accounts payable
Accrued labilitiss
Due to retirement system
Due to other governments

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Fiows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds of notes
issuance of long-term debt
Repayment of notes
Retirement of long-term debt
nterest on ndebtedness
Acauisition and construction of capital assets

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related
Firancing Activities
Cash Fiows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Due from other funds
Operating transfers in
Retirement of long-term debt
Interest on indebtedness

Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital
Financing Activities

Net Decrease in Cash and Equivalents
Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year
Cash and Equivalents - End of Year

Supplemental schedute of noncash financing activities:

t8e7 1886
$ (567,751) $ (3,053.583)
1,677,007 1,751,089
3,334,772 2,210,921
270,087 381,043
(3.199.818)  (3,401.354)
(279.,539) (7.179)
(67,268) 58,671
296 609 (693,419
1,162,718 1,741,538
219,567 (325,568)
(2,646,420}  (1,336,530)
199,964  (3,274.371)

- 1,235,000
1,910,000 -
(1,235,000} -
(1.635543) (1,473,156}
(565,132) (479,666)
(1.398516)  (1,810.730)
(2925.191)  (2,628.552)
(2.098.970) (1,322,027}
4,707,088 6,821,195
(189,773) (181,434
(154,048) (166 985)
2,264,277 5,150,749
(460,950) (752,174)
5,161,824 5,813,998

During 1986, Enterprise Fund transferred net assets of $1 414 289 and netf kabilities of 31,414,289

to the General Services Fund,



INTERNAL SERVICE
FUNDS

Internal Service Funds account for operations that provide
services to  other departments or agencies of the
government, or to other governments, on a cost
reimbursement basis.  The County has established its
Workers” Compensation Benefits, General Liability Claims,
Unemployment Benefits, Health Benefits and General
Services funds as Internal Service funds.




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, KEW YORK

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1897

(With Comparative Totals for 1996)

ASSETS
Cash:
Demand deposits

Certificates of deposit
Petty cash

Investments
Receivables:

Accounts

Siate and Federal aid

Due from other governmenis
Due from other funds

Prepaid Expenses
inventories
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assels
Accumulated Depreciation

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabiiities
Due to retirement systerns
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues
Current maturities of bonds payable

Total Current Liabilities
Honds Payabie, less current maturities
Total Liabilities
Equity:
Contributed capital
Retained earnings
Total bquity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Workers' General
Compensation Lrability Unemployment
Benefits Claims Beneafits
Fund Fund Fund
$ 1068612 & 61067 3 137,710
100612 6107 137.710
7214000 8200,000 _
40 680 - 5189
- 184,107 -
40,680 184,107 5,188
- 115 - -
7,355.407 8,350,214 142899
y7,355407 8380214 3 142,898
$ 178,271 - % .
5021014 4 825 017 27,525
55861 - 8,579
6256 510 4,825 017 36104
3245 _ -
6259755 4825017 36,104
1,085,652 3,565 197 106,785
1095652 3565197 106,795
$ 7’3554(}7 83962“&4 % 142 BSY



Health
Henefits
Fund

14 836
2,708,000

2.714 836
4,441,000

87,410

97,1486

184,556
7,340,392

..[.340,392

1,176,676
4,166,386

1.881.828
15,481

7,340,382

7,340,392

3

7,340,392

$

General
Services
Fund

866,394
200
.. 586,594

358,751
47,952

4.220,854

. 4628,657

15,541
100,807
5,611,699

6,364 287
(2618,482)

3,745,805

$

$.8.357.504 %

$

$ 9,357,504 §

Totals

1es7

1125659 %

2,700,000
.20

3,825,859

. 19,855,000

483 030
47 952
897,146

4,405,081

5,043,189
15,656
100,907

28,840,611

6,364,287
(2.618,482)

3,745 BOS

32,586,416

1886

749,135
2,550,000
...200

3,298,335

12,470,000

276,025
24,783
38.173

8,084,204
..43474
90,431

2,915,149
(2,472,136

443,013

24,430,457

1,113,991
2,995,196
541620
291,577
4,942,384
4,154,524
9,096,508
131,341
129,255

.. 260,596

$

2,469,938
18,035,148
541.620
2,046,269
15,491
291,941
23,400,407
4 157,769
27,558,176
131,341
4,896,899
5,028,240

32,586,416

1,081,856
19,249,241
278,710
105,384
10,508
43,460

20,781,158
449710

21,230,869

131,341
3,068,247

3,199,588

24,430,457
34



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
[N FUND EQUITY

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1867

[Whth Comparative Totals for 1985)

Operating Revenues!
Charges for services
E-811surcharge
Miscelianeous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Adrmanistrative and general expenses
Salaries and wage expeanses
Judgments and claims
Employee benefits
Depreciation
Furchases and stores
Lata processing
E-g11
Mail
Communications
Reproduction
Housekeeping
Health complex materials
Security
Utifity plant
Grounds
Automotive
Maintenance

Total Operating Expenses
income {Loss) From Operations
Non-Operating Revenues {Expenses),
interest income
State aud
intgrest on indebtedness

Total Non-Cperating Revenues

Net income (L.oss) Before Operating Transfers

Cperating Transfers In

Net Income (Loss)

Retained Earnings {Deficit) - Beginning of Year

Residual Equity Transfer

Retained Carnings - End of Year
Contributed Capital - Beginning of Year
Add: Transfer In

Contributed Capital - End of Year
Total Fund Equity - End of Year

EXPENSES AND CHANGES

Workers'

Compensation

Benefits

L Fund

$ 4146245 %

4,146,245

301,882
68658

1,927‘995-

[ R

2,298,536
1,847,708

444 806

(2863

2,282,229

2.292 229

1,095,652

Unemployed-

(1,196,577

General

LiabHity ment

Claims Benefits

Fund ~ Fund
1,380,000 % 130,415
_1.380,000 130,415
2477061 )
. 130,380
2,177,081 - 130,380
reroeyy 35
377.181 2167
377,181 2187
(418 880) 2,202
(418 880 2.202
3,985077 104 583
3,565,197 106,795

5 1095852 § 3,565,197 § 106,795

3
h



Hesaith
Benefits
Fund

22,733,637

81.048

22,814,685

22,861, 555%-

22,961,558

146 873

146,873

(146,873)

$

General Taotals

Semvices
Fund 1997 1996
19508714 $ 478885011 $ 485981588
566,848 566 848 543 7495
669 BI717 239026
20076231 48547576 50,764,390
1,208 142 1,511,024 1,634 871
“ 68,659 67,347

- 2.177.061 B5 2585
2783426 27,813,358 29,361,737
954 734 954 734 120,557
146,346 146 346 1,024 588
3817714 3.517.714 364G 446
432 771 432771 363,704
5498 587 698 587 710,002
1,315,267 1,315,267 1,282,379
388,032 388032 480,548
1.768572 1,768,572 1,736,601
204 238 204238 311,542
1671106 1,674,106 1,582,459
2.012 488 2012 488 2033177
317 856 317.856 411,237
427 368 477 366 402,178
2028188 2028188 1799072
19.886,833 47454368 46,936,501
183398 1093208 3827889
- 971,027 804,240

55,858 55 B&8 54 740
(174.751)  (175,037) (38,619)
(118893) 851848 820,381
70,805 1.845 056 4 648 250
56,180 55190 -
125 895 2,800,248 4 B48 250
175,154 3068247 {1,580.003:
(171594)  (371594) -
129255 4896899 3,068,247
131,341 131,341 .

- T 131,341

131,341 131,341 131,341

280,596 3 5028240 § 3,199,588
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND NEW YORK

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997

(With Comparative Totals for 1996)

Waorkers' Generat
Compensation Liability Unemployment
Benefits Claims HBenefits
Fund  Fund  Fund
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
tncome (loss) from operations 3 1847708 % (797,061 & 35

Adiustments o reconcile income {loss) from operations
fo net cash provided by {used in) operating aclivities:
[epreciation - - -
Changes in operating assets and labilities:
Accounts receivable (7.659) - 13,639
State and Federal aid receivable - .
Due from other governments - - -

Prepaid expenses 105 - -
inveniorias - - -
Accounts payable {91.832) - -
Accrued lHabilities (547 B3 644 821 {14,148}

Due to retirement sysiems
Deferred revenues S N - -

Net Cash Provided by (Used In}

Operating Activities 1,200,691 (152,240} (474}
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
tnterest income 444 BOS 77181 2,187
Proceeds from sale of investients 5,570,000 6,900,000 -
Furchase of invesiments o (7,214 000) (8,200,000; -

MNet Cash Provided by (Lised in}
investing Activilies (1,189 154} {922 .819) - 2ae7

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Grant received from other government - - -
Proceeds from indebiedness - - -
Acquisition and construction of {used in} of capital assets e, e o s e .
Net Cash Provided by (Used in}
Capital and Related Financing Activities R - RS -

Cash Fiows From Non-Capiial Financing Activities:
Residual equity transfer -

e from other funds - G20 812 BS 560

Due to other funds {53523 - .

Operating transfers i . - -

Retirement of long-term debt {349} - -

Interest on indebtedness {288} - -
MNet Cash Provided by (Used in} Non-Capitat

Financing Activites (54.158) 920812 B9.560

Net increase (Decrease} in Cash and Equivalents (52,661} (154 247} 91,253

Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year B 163273 160,354 46,457

Cash and Equivalents - End of Year $ ... 6082 8 8107 5 137,710
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meaith General - Totals
Benefits Servicas
. Fund o Fund 1887 1998

$ {146 873 § 188,388 § 1093208 % 3827 889

- 148,346 146,345 120,557

(40,730} (182.255) (217.005) (92.350)

- (23,169) 123,169} (24,783)

(57.973) - (57,973} 23,832

- 27,713 27 818 (25,336}

- (10,476} (10,476) -

962,759 506,955 1,378,082 407,247
(2,190.117) 871,028 (1,236.248) 505,419
- 264,910 264,910 276,710

4983 - 4,983 L (1,012
(1,487,951) 1780450 1370478 5018133
146,873 ; 971,027 804,240

- - 12,470,000 4,080,000
4441000 . - (19,855,000)  (12,470,000)
Lt4z284027) - (6413.873) (7585760
- 55 858 55,858 54,740

- 4,000,000 4,000,000 -

s (3448138)  (3449,138) (201,801}

oo BoeTe 0 8067200 (147.081)

: (171,584) (171,504} -

5543 928 (1.224.730) 5,329,570 (3.720,871)
- - (53,523) (22,459

- 55,190 55190 -

- (43,111) (43,460} (41,570}
Looo...i1seseey (152882 (38,619)
3,543,928 (1,536,841) (4,863,301 (3823519
(21B.150) 860,329 526,524 16,538,207
..2,832 388 6,265 3288335 9,837,542

$ 2714836 $ 866584 § 3825859 § 3,299,335



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

WORKERS' COMPENSATION BENEFITS FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996

ASSETS
Cash:
Demand deposits
Certificates of deposit

Investments
Accounts Receivahie
Prepaid Expenses

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabiiities
Due to other funds
Current maturities of bonds payable
Total Current Liabilities
Honds Pavable, less current malurities
Total Liabilities
Retained Earnings (Deficit)

Total Liabilities and Retained Earnings (Deficit)

93

oo teer 1996
$ 100612 $ 103,273
- 50000
100,612 153.273
7214000  5570,000
40,680 33,021
115 2
$.7.355407 % 5756514
$ 179271 $ 270,903
6,021,014 6568846
55,861 109,384
o34 348
6,256,510 6,949,482
3245 3609
6.259.755 6,953,091
1,095,652 (1,186,577)
§...7,355407 5 5756514




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

WORKERS COMPENSATION BENEFITS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN RETAINED EARNINGS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996

Operating Revenues - Charges for services
Operating Expenses:
Administrative and general expenses
Salaries and wage expenses
Emplovee benefils
Total Operating Expenses
income From Operations
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
interest income
interest on indebledness
Total Non-Operating Revenues
Net income

Deficit - Beginning of Year

Retained Earnings (Deficit) - End of Year

00

3 4146245 §& 3993108
301,882 350,942
68,659 67,347
1927995 2,420,278
2298535 2,838,567
1,847,708 1,154,539
444,808 276,774
(286) (310)
444,520 276,464
2,292,229 1,431,003
(1,196,577 (2,627,580)

$

1.095652 § (1,196,577)



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

WORKERS' COMPENSATION BENEFITS FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
income from operations

Adjustments to reconcile income from operations
to cash provided by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilties:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Acecounts payable
Accrued ilabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Cash Fiows From Investing Activities:
interest income
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investments
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Due to other funds
Retirement of long-term debt
interest on Indebtedness
Net Cash Used in Non-Capital Financing Activities
Net Decrease in Cash and Equivalents

Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Equivalents - End of Year

10

oo issr o 1see
$ 1847709 $ 1,154,539
(7.659) (8,858}
105 (41)
(91.632) 36,822
- (547.832) 524,264
1200881 1706726
444 806 276,774
5,570,000 1,080,000
(7,214,000)  (5,570,000)

(1,199,194)

(53,523) (22,450)
(349) (334)
(288} (310
(54,158) (23,103}
(52.661)  (2.529,603)
183,273 2,682,876
$....100812 § 153273




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK
GEMNERAL LIABILITY CLAIMS FUND

COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996

ASSETS

Cash - Demand deposits
inyestments
Due from Other Funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Liabilibes -
" Accrued liabilities

Retained Earmings

Total Liabilities and Retained Earnings

Laesr

8,107
8,260,000

184,107

.. 8,390,214

4825017

3,565,197

160,354

6,800,000

1,104,918

8,185,273

4,180,186

5,985,077

..8.165273



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL LIABILITY CLAIMS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1886

1887 1986
Operating Revenues - Charges for services $ 1380000 % 28158682
Operating Expenses -
Judgments and claims 2,177,081 . 95255
Income (Loss) From Cperations (797.0681) 2.760.437
Mon-Operating Revenues -
Interest income 377,181 ...389.189
Net income {(Loss) {410 880) 3,148,626
Retained Earnings - Beginning of Year 3,885,077 835,451
Retained Eamnings - End of Year § 3565197 $ 3985077




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL LIABILITY CLAIMS FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1987 AND 1996

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
income (Loss) from operations

Adjustments to reconcile income from operations to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities -
Accrued liabilities
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
interest income
Proceeds from sale of investments
Furchase of investments
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities -
Due from other funds
Net Decrease in Cash and Equivalents

Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Equivalents - End of Year

1997 1986
(797,061) $ 2760437
b4saB21 (2,339,845)
{152,240 420,492
377,181 389,189
6,900,000 3,000,000
 (8,200,000) (6,900.000)
(922 819) (3,510,811)
920,812 (417.321)
(154,247) (3,507.840)
160,354 3,668,194
. 8107 § 180,354



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1986 |

ASSETS
Cash - Demand deposits
Receivables:

Accounts
Bue from other funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Liabilities:
Accrued liabilities
{Due to other funds
Total Liabiities

Retained Earnings

Total Liabilities and Retained Earnings

105

1897 1996
137,710 48,457
5188 18.828
- 80,981
5,189 99,809
142,896 146,266
27 5258 41673
8579 .
36,104 41673
106,795 104,593



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996

Lreesr 1996
Operating Revenues - Charges for services $ 130,415 3 235515
Operating Expenses -
Employee benefits .. 130380 235522
income (Loss) From Operations 35 (73
Non-Operating Revenues -
Interest income . 2187 1210
Net Income 2,202 1,203
Retained Earnings - Beginning of Year 104583 103,380
Retained Earnings - End of Year $ 106795 § 104563
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

UNEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1896

Cash Fiows From Operating Activities:
Income (loss) from operatiocns

Adiustments to reconcile income (loss) from operations to
net cash used in operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounis receivabie
Accrued Habilities
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Cash Fiows From Investing Activities -
Interest income

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities -
Due from other funds
MNet Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Eguivalents
Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Equivalents - End of Year

Aeer 1996
35 % (7)
13,639 (2,839)
(14,148) (42,181)
(474) .(48,027)
2187 1210
89,560 5,839
91,253 (38,978
46,457 85435
137,710 8 ..488.457



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

HEALTH BENEFITS FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1966

Cash:
Demand deposits
Certificates of deposit

Investments
Receivables:
Accounts

Due from other governments
Due from other funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabiiities
Due to other funds
Deferred revenues

Total Liabilities
Retained Earnings

Totai Liabilities and Retained Eamnings

1997 1996
14 838 432 986
2700000 2.500000
2714836 2.932.986
4,441,000 :
87 410 46 680

g7, 146 38,173

- 3562099

184556 3,647,952
7340392 § 6,580,938
1,176,676 213817
4. 166,396 6,356,513
1,981,828 -
15491 10,508
7,340 392 6,580 938
6,580,938



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

HEALTH BENEFITS FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN RETAINED EARNINGS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1967 AND 1996

a8 1996

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services § 22733637 3 23,990,343
Miscellaneous 81,048 184,286
Total Operating Revenues 22,814 885 24 174 629

Operating Expenses -
Employee benefits 22,961,558 24420432
Loss From Operations {146,873 {245 803}

Non-Operating Revenues -

interest income .....laB873 137067
MNet Income {Loss) - (108,7386)
Retained Eamings - Beginning of Year T 108,736
Retained Earnings - End of Year I S



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

HEALTH BENEFITS FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Loss from operations

Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from operations to

net cash provided by (used in} operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenues

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
nterest income
Purchase of investments

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Non-Capital Financing Activities -
Due from other funds

MNet Decrease in Cash and Equivalents
Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Equivaients - End of Year

110

o 1ee7 ..1996
(146.873) §  (245.803)
(40,730} 96.803
(57,973) 23,832
962,759 213,610
(2,190,117) 1,528,974
4883 (1.012)
(1,467 951) 1,616,404
146,873 137,067
(4,441,000) -
(4,204 127) 137,067
5,543,928 (2,221,522)
(218,150) (468.051)
2,932,986 3,401,037

... 2714836 § 2,932.986




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK
GENERAL SERVICES FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1936

1887 19%6

ASSETS
Cashy.
Dermnand deposits 3 BEE 394 % 5,085
Petty cash L2000 . 206
.. 566,504 . 8285
Receivables:
Accounts 358,751 177 486
State and Federal aid 47 452 24,783
Due from other funds 4276954 2,996 224
4628657 53198503
Prepaid Expenses _ 15541 43254
Inventories 100,807 80,431
Total Current Assets 5811699 3338453
Fixed Assets:
Buildirgs 2,880 2,880
Equipment 8361307 2912188
£,364,287 2,815, 149
Less: Accumuiated depreciation {2.618482y  (2472138)
3,745,805 443,013
Total Assets $...9307504 & 5781466
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payahle $ 1,113,881 3 807,036
Accrued liabiities 2,895,196 2,102,013
Due to retirement systems 541,620 278 710
Current maturities of bonds payable 291577 _ 431711
Total Current Liatilities 4,942 384 3,028 87C
Bonds Payabie less current maturities o 41b4524 445401
Total Liabilities g 086 808 34748971
Equity:
Coniributed capital 131,341 131,341
Retained earnings ..129285 175,154
Total Equity - 2605486 306 4595
Total Liabilties and Equity $. 9387504 5 3781466
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL SERVICES FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

N FUND EQUITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 33, 1997 AND 1996

QOperating Revenues
Charges for services
E-311 surcharge
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Administration
Pension and employes henefits
Purchases and stores
Data processing
E-911
KMai
Cormunications
Reproduction
Housekeeping
Health complex materals
Security
Utiiity plant
Grounds
Automotive
Maintenance
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
income From Operations
Non-Operating Revenues {Expenses):
State aid
interest on indebledness
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Net Income Before Operating Transfers
Operating Transfers In
Met income
Retained Earnings - Beginning of Year
Residuat Equity Transfer
Hetained Eamings - End of Year
Contributed Capitat - Beginning of Year
Add: Transfer in

Contributed Capital - End of Year

Total Fund Equity - £nd of Year

1897 1886
$ 19508714 $ 18946913
566,848 543,795
669 54,740
20,076,231 19,545 448
1,209,142 1,183,729
2,793,426 2,285,505
954,734 1,024 589
3,517,714 3,645,448
432,771 363.704
698 587 710,002
1,315,267 1,292,379
388,032 480,548
1,769,572 1,736 601
204,238 311,542
1.671,106 1,582,459
2,012,488 2,033,177
317.856 411,237
427,366 402.178
2,028,188 1,799,072
146,346 120557
15,886,833 19,386,725
..18¢9,398 158,723
55,858 54,740
. (174.75%) . {38,308}
________________________ (118.833) 18,431
70,505 175,154
5180 -
125,695 175,154
175,154 -
(171,594) -
129,285 175,154

131,341

- 131,341
131,341 131,341
$....260586 & 306495



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL SERVICES FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Income from operations

Adjustments to reconcile income from cperations to
net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
State and Federal aid receivable
Prepaid expenditures
lwentories
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to retirement systems

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Cash Flows From Capilal and Related Financing Activities:
Grant received from other government
Proceeds from indebtedness
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Net Cash Provided by {(Used in) Capital and Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows Frorm Non-Capital Finrancing Activities:
Residual equity fransfer
Due from other funds
Operating transfers in
Retirement of long-term debt
Interest on indebtedness
Net Cash Used in Non-Capilal Financing Activities
Met Increase in Cash and Equivalents
Cash and Equivalents - Beginning of Year
Cash and Equivalents - End of Year

Supplemental schedule of non-cash financing activities:

Net transfer of assets and Habilities from the Genera! Fund and Enterprise Fund

LesT

185398 %

146 346

(182 255}
{23,165}
27713
(10.476)
506,855
871,028
264,910

1,780,450

55,858
4,600,000

(3,449,138}

606,726

(171,594)

(1,224,730}
55190

(43.111)

..{1,336,841)

860,329

6,265

158723

120,557
(177.496)
(24,783}
(25 205}

1866 815
836,307

54,740

(201,801)

..(147.061)

{1,087.667)

(41236’;}
(38,309}

(1187.212)

6265

131,341



FIDUCIARY
FUNDS

The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by
the County in a trustee or custodial capacity. Fiduciary
Funds include Expendable Trust and Agency Funds. The
Expendable Trust Fund accounts for assets held by the
County in accordance with terms of a trust agreement. The
Agency Fund accounts for assets held by the County on
behalf of others.




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

FIDUCIARY FUNDS - TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 1997
(With Comparative Totails for 1996}

ASSETS

Cash:
Demand deposits
Time deposits
Certificates of deposit

Investment of Employees' Deferred
Compensation, at market value

Accounts Receivable

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabiiities:

Employee payroll deductions

Deposits

Due to other governments

Due to other funds

Deferred compensation

payable to employees

Total Liabilities

Fund Balance - Reserved for social
SErvice programs

Totat Ligbilities and Fund Balance

Expendable Totals
Trust Agency
Fund Fund 1997 1896
$ - $§ 1315701 % 1315701 % 1280775
88,152 2.707 957 2,807,109 2,674,603
250,000 250,000 250,000
99,152 4.273.658 4,372.810 4,185,378
- 62,882,122 62,882,122 51,738,654
- - - 300
$ 99,152 & 67155780 § 67,254932 § 55924632
3 - 3 72675 % 72675 % 54,250
- 2,888,036 2,995,036 3,135,244
- 1,179,771 1178771 503,137
- 22,176 22,176 3,241
...... 62,882 122 62,882 122 51,738,954
- 67,155,780 67,155,780 55,834 826
99 152 - 9g 152 89,806
$ 99152 § 67155780 § £7254832 $ 55924632

1

4



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK
FIDUCIARY FUNDS - EXPENDABLE TRUST FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997 AND 1996

Hevenues:
Departmental income
Use of money and property
Total Revenues

Expenditures - Current -
Economic opportunity and deveiopment

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

Fund Balance - End of Year

115

20034 3 6,628
2,993 2,058
23.027 8,686
13,681 16,815
9,346 (8,129)
89,806 97,935
99,152 $_ 89,806




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

FIDUCIARY FUNDS - AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1997

Cash:
Demand deposits
Time deposits
Certificates of deposit

fnvestment of Employees’ Deferred
Compensation, at market value

Accounts Recsivabie

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Employee Payroll Deductions

Beposits

Bue to Other Governments

Due to Other Funds

Deferred Compensation
Payable to Employees

Totat Liahilities

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
16497 Decreases 1887
$ 1260775 & 50573571 % 50518645 % 1315701
2,584 747 2,707 957
250,000 250 000
4 005572 50,880 618 50,702 530 4 273658
51,738,954 11,143,168 B2 882 122
300 -
$ 65834826 ¢ 62023784 % 50702830 3 67,165,780
¥ 54250 % 13.341547 $% 13,323,122 3% 726875
3,135 244 2,889 036
903,137 1,179,771
3,241 22,176
______ 51,738,854 11,143,168 82 B2 122
$ 55834828 _$ 31504864 § 20183910 $ 67155780
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STATISTICAL
SECTION

(unaudited)




COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES BY FUNCTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

General Economic

Government Public Trans- Opportunity and

~ Year Support Education Safety Health portation Development
1988 $ 25788762 5 4833756 § 16288819 $ 14606095 $ 15103672 $ 64,156,360
1989 28.708 420 5,047 657 18,480,380 15.888,193 16,023,100 70,802,023
1680 30685755 11,541,197 21,882 110 16,449 262 18,837,996 78,925,789
1991 30,404 854 9.691,948 22,804,413 17,346,088 17474 874 88,127.072
1982 27796672 12,452 826 23,122,479 17,596,762 17.998,395 87 877436
1983 32,8997 465 14,220,285 24,744 881 18.700,722 18,610,997 93,538,114
1994 33,124,434 15,349,657 26,727,082 20,355,900 20.573,652 102.978654
1985 32,866,153 17.045 488 29,408 241 42,389,878 21,133,640 107,189,665
1996 26,086,819 17,761,342 28,503,784 22 848 338 21,928,753 103,421,593
1997 26,351,172 17,668,155 29,035,303 22.765,864 21933974 106,484 669

Note: Includes General and Special Revenue funds,

117



Home and Other

Culture and Community Employee Debt Financing

Recreation Services Benefils Service Uses Total
374501 § 9894852 $ 2B652828 § $ 35825668 § 215625314
420,335 11.480.615 30,573.662 550,600 47 873,310 248 B6B 695
808,428 10,826 882 32,987 944 1,075,000 58,438 068 280,458,431
501,799 12,915,803 30,214,052 1,312,812 41,206,371 272,099,888
528622 12747796 32,738 812 2,408,358 41,2065 570 276475728
413,322 11,635 815 35,830,543 1,848 697 43,148 294 296,780,835
547 141 10,873 338 38,056,371 1,097 841 44,033 496 313,717 566
B24 572 11,447 765 1,532,165 778 667 45,178,302 289,802,536
905,101 11,725,224 1,686 581 1,663,387 43 449 961 27%,980,864
503.038 12,530,654 1,848,750 1,126,708 42,719,724 282 870,308
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Lise of
Real Other MNon Money Licenses
Property Tax Property Departmentat and and
Year Taxes ~ ltems Taxes Income Property _ Permis
1985 3 12581308 $ 2398281 § 42663523 § 38405428 & 4535813 427681
1689 51,884,875 3.148.725 43,223,823 48,076,204 4 457 736 541 969
18680 5382188683 3,591,713 43,505,833 41258217 3,382,308 836,905
1591 52 B44 448 4 692,598 56,245 488 31,397 243 3,055,881 914,347
1692 56,276,149 5681682 686,418,765 32 446 835 2,285 834 853,603
1983 54,946 568 6,086,083 56,758,684 30,843,511 1.687.228 838,573
1994 66,221,367 5867 112 70,832,560 34,290 569 1,685,380 747928
1995 86,102,381 £,725483 71,285,314 28,308,565 2287729 824 666
19586 71514318 5,357 481 75,554 316 21,346 455 2558 952 791,048
1967 65,082 413 8519596 82,200,180 22,157 045 3068,193 796 684

Mote: Includes General and Special Revenue funds.



Sale of

Froperty and Other
Fines and Compensation nterfund State Federal Financing
Forfeitures for Loss Revenues Aid A Miscellaneous Sources Total
$ 433008 § 154816 § 10.793.961 § 38555288 21179403 §  2433.947 § 10504587 $ 185165145
458,035 277,792 11,756,808 41,565 205 20,392 922 2.864.307 19 853,922 248314110
495,381 298,579 16,924 793 45175057 23012477 2,674,056 28,997 411 264 673,063
408 864 345,423 27335915 49 251 183 24,519 253 1,445 487 7.922.003 280,382,634
593 551 284,780 27505623 47,808,755 28011012 1,715,853 13.210.554 284 602995
444 235 292,081 33,386,384 53875893 25 863,118 1,354 877 10,406,139 296,764,375
791,243 118,370 32.787 426 56.604,573 29,869,755 2.014 760 2,882,007 311533054
587,980 398,619 4,037,370 80,510,005 33,347 644 2,363,856 11,745,366 288,529,588
492,366 30707 3,647 471 60,879,379 31,840 907 2,141,255 12.372,562 289,527 298
627.785 57,078 4,003,463 81,105,011 33,427 048 2,452 479 13,559,289 299,057,693
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND NEW YORK

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

1988
1889
1980
1891
1882
1993
1904
1985
1996

1887

(1} Includes County, Town, Village and School relevy as the County 15 the levying body.

121

Current Percent Delinquent Totat
Total Tax of Levy Tax Tax
Tax Levy (1} Coflections  Collected Coliections Coltections

$ 318,0739.188 & 314,786,918 98.97% % 33776888 $ 318,154 807
385,527,540 381,380,081 898.93 2824870 384 214 961
417,244 381 410,065 580 98.28 4,886,241 414,851 821
446,763 820 435,078,813 97.38 5,138 298 440,217 111
478,775,851 464 214 767 96.56 5,583,038 469,797 805
488,800,192 474 831672 8710 11655224 486,286 885
508605577 496,583 504 G744 13,052,061 509,635,565
534011807 520,133,058 97 40 11,233,342 531,366,398
581,457,259 543,530,258 98.56 13,145,029 556,675,287
572674 963 561,187 252 47 89 13.572.108 574,759.360



Percent

of Tota! Percent of

Tax Cutstanding Detinguent
Cottection Delinguent Taxes to
ToTaxiewy Taxes Tax Levy

100.03% 3% 9,858,928 310 %

&9 66 11,172,595 280

89 45 13,005 858 312

8853 189,552 608 438

498.12 28,530,654 5.86

89 .49 31,043,950 6.35

100.01 21,013,962 5.0%

89.50 33,658,371 630

100.95 28,441,343 516

100.36 368

21,072,381
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

ASSESSED VALUATION OF TAXABLE REAL PRCPERTY, AVERAGE

EQUALIZATION RATE AND FULL VALUATION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year
1988
1889
1980
1891
1992
1943
1954
1985
1986

1997

Assessed

. Valuation

$ 8,980,171.326

8,851 101,142
9,120,603,214
8,356,831,080
9,478,360.470
9.436,121.381
9,435 211,487
§,882,162 386
9,503,468, 123

9,544 444 519

Average
Equalization
Rate (1)

103.52
81.23
68.04
54.67
50.60
51.71
53.67
53.84
53.24

50.78

% $

Fuil
Valuation

8,674 817,741
10,895,535,525
13,403 482,251
17,023.230,815
18,731,250,513
18,247 596 664
17,581 112,520
18,353 200,207
17,787.386,306

18,785,889.785

{1} The equalization rate is the weighted average of the State equalization rate established for
each Town within the County. The Town's equalization rates are established by the New
York State Board of Equalization and Assessment.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COUNTY PROPERTY TAX RATES BY TOWN

PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED

VALUATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year
1988
1989 $
1990
1991
1992
1993
1894
1895
1886

1897

" Town Wide tax rate
™ Town Outside Villages tax

Clarkstown

3.586948 5
3.638383¢
4 (95601
4.769062
4 B36896
4.866005
4.456823
4.385030

4.054420

rate

Haverstraw

B2 21

Grangetown

Stony
Jpoint

County Tax Suspended for 1988

23.116 &
21.640
22.880
23.840
24.470
24.590
24.880
24.450

21,990

124

2377 §
2.275
2.402
2.738
2.953
2.808
2.908%/2.948™
2.8688

3.0580

84225 3
8.1562
B.7665
10.0498
87775
9.5846
5.2872
9.0848

8.5864

Ramapo

ofe e S W

7.183
7.000
7.370
8.380
9180
8.410
8.510
8.135

8.985
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN
DECEMBER 31, 1997

Five Year Full Valuation of Taxable Reai Property {1892 - 1996) $ 80,700,546 210
Five Year Average Full Valuation $ 18,140,108 242
Debt Limit - 7% of Five Year Average Full Valuation $ 1,268,807 547
indebtedness:
Serial Bonds:
General Purpose $ 81587260
Sewer District Facilities 58,480,240

$ 141,047 500
Bond Anticipation Notes -

Sewer District Facilities 6,800,600
Revenue Anticipation Notes 15,000,000
Total Indebtedness 1682 847 K500

Less Exclusions:
Sewer District Facilities:

Serial Bonds 58,460,240
Bond Anticipation Notes 6,800,000
66,260,240
1998 Budget Appropriations for
Non-BExempt Debt 16,851,692
Revenue Anticipation Notes - 15,000,000
Total Exclusions 98,211,932
Total Net Indebtedness ~ B48635568
Net Debt Contracting Margin $ 1206172079

Percentage of Debt Contracting Power
Exhausted as of December 31, 1897 509 %
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

RATIO OF NET GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUATION
AND NET GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year

1988

1989

1980

1981

1962

1983

1994

1985

1586

1897

Population

)
265,860
265600
265,475
267,922
268 625
272,700
274834
276,898
278,000

279,860

Agsessed
Valuation (2}

$ 8,980,171.326
8,851,101,142
9,120,603.214
9,356.831.060
9.478,360470
9,436,121,381
9,435.211,487
8,882,162,386
§,503,468,123

9,544 444 519

$

Gross
General
Long-Term

Debt (3)

120833277
122,875,383
116,286 447
107.722.733
120,606,063
118,388,820
129,813,665
128.712,882
123,225,445

124,413,221

iess
Debt Service

Funds
Available

$ 5080132

6,225,938
4,246 287
5,564 885
7,502,126
8,177,863
8.076.375
18,287,756
15,662,758

15,831,007

Net
General
Long-Term
Debt

115,843,145
118,749 444
112,040,160
102,157 848
113.103,643
111,210,857
120,737 290
110,425,126
107,562,686

108,482,214

{1y The population figures are based on estimates made by the Rockland County Planning Departrment
(1988-1989), the 1980 U 8. Census and estimates by the U S. Census Bureau in cooperation with the
N.Y. 8. Depariment of Economic Development for 19911847,

(2} There was a substantial increase in 18988 due fo a re-valuation of assessed values in the Town

of Crangetown.

{3y Represents bonds and capilal notes recorded m the general long-term debt account group.

i
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Net General

Long-Term Net General
Debt Long-Terrm
to Assessed Debt
Vaiuation Per Capita

129 % $ 43583

1.32 438.57
1.23 422.04
1.08 381.30
1.18 419.02
1.18 407 81
1.28 439.31
1.12 . 39878
1.13 386.92
1.14 387.63
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL
LONG-TERM DEBT TO TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Ratio of
Annual Total Debt
Debt General Service to
Service Governmental Total Generat
Expend- Expend- Governmental
Year Principal (1) Interest (1) tures (1)~ itures (2) Expenditures
14988 $ 7777505 % 8367520 % 17,1458 D28 215625 314 7.95 %
1889 5064 894 B.AGH 417 16 563 311 246 868 685 671
1690 8156 258 7,885 837 16.052 195 280,458 431 572
1991 9.000.214 7 691,085 16,681 299 272,005 8886 513
1982 9,238,420 6,878,997 16,218,417 276475728 587
1893 g 479 269 7,167,903 16,647 172 296 78Y 935 561
1G94 10,546 725 €.802 730 17,348 455 313,717 585 553
1895 11,221 783 7.514 672 18,736,455 289 802 538 547
1996 11.605 840 7.273.52% 18,879,368 279,880,864 .74
1997 12,708 224 6,672 877 19,381,101 282,970,308 £.85

{1} Reflects debt service expenditures recorded in the Debt Service Fund for bonds and
capital notes recorded in the general long-term debt account group.

{2} Includes expenditures and other financing uses for general and special revenus funds.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
DECEMBER 31, 1697

Gross Armount
General Less Applicable
Governmental Long-Term Exclusions to

Unit ~ Debt () (2. . County
County of Rockland $ 124413221 3 15931007 $ 108482214
Towns 137 565,000 7,182,500 130,382,500
Villages 26 557 006 1,489 000 25,058,000
School Districts 108,136,000 42,607,000 65,529,000
Total $ 396671221 § 67219507 $ 329451714

{1} Excludes enterprise fund bonds.

{2} Exclusions include certain water and sewer bonds and the amount available for
repayment in the Debt Service Fund. For the school districts, the State school building
aid is excluded.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year Population (1)
1988 265800
1989 265,600
1990 265.475
1991 267.922
1992 269,925
1993 272,700
1994 274,834
1995 276,898
1696 278,000
1997 279.860

Per Capiia
income (2)

22,533
23,790
25,156
25371
26,227
26,870
N/A
N/A
N/A

NiA,

Unemployment
Rate (3)

2.80

3.30
5.30
6.00
5.40
5.40
480
4.30

4.30

Sources. (1) The population figures are based on estimates made by the Rockland County Planning
Department (1987-1988), the 1980 U.S. Census and estimates by the U.S. Census Bureau
in cooperation with the N.Y.S. Department of Economic Development for 1891-1897.

(23 .S Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economics Analysis, New York State
Department of Labor, Division of Research and Statistics.

(37 New York State Depariment of Labor, Division of Research and Statistics.
(Note: Figures not seasonally adjusted),

N/A - Figures are not availeble for inclusion in this table.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

CONSTRUCTION PERMIT DATA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

| New Non-Residential (1) .. New Residential ..
No. of Estimated No. of Estimated

Year Permits ~ Sq.Ft. =~ Value = Permits  Sq Ft Value
1988 644 N/A § 25884727 671 N/A 8 78118507
1989 386 KA 35,299,084 512 NIA 60,177 250
1986 322 N/A 32,716,876 526 RIA 59,106,695
1881 260 KA 12,380,737 487 MN/A 60,919,850
1987 254 N/A, 10,188,622 612 N/A, 68,987 410
1993 261 NFA 21,224 513 572 M/A 60,512 664
1994 239 N/A 33,476 440 475 MN/A 53,230,81¢
19985 201 N/A 10,082,102 483 N/A 50,650,740
1996 N/A N/A N/A 485 N/A 71,517,367
1987 NiA N/A M/A 512 NIA 70,873,386

Sources: N.Y.S. Division of Housing and Community Renewal
LS. Census Building Permit Survey

(1} This category has been eliminated as of 1986,

NiA  Figures are not available for inclusion in this table.
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COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

DEPOSITS IN LOCAL BANKS BY ALL CUSTOMERS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Year

1988

1983

1980

19a1t

1982

1693

1904

19895

1996

1997

Sources:

MNo

11

1

10

11

10

10

11

11

i1

9

Commercial
Banks
No. of

Branches

67
66
57
72
71
73
78

76

Total
Deposits
R

§ 2.154.490,000

2257224 000
2,417 488,000
2797 782,000
2.732.282.000
2.811.179.00C
28982574 000
3.013,084.000
3.0899,631.000

3.323,803,66C

Fiseal

Ending

6130

{1y NY.S. Banking Office and FOIC Research Department

(2) Federst Home Loan Banking - Research Depariment

132

88

89

G0

g1

92

g3

94

a5

o8

g7

Mo,

15

15

14

Savings/
Savings
and Loan
No of
Branches (2}

31
32
32
27
27
22
18

20

21

Tostat
Deposits

1,836,172.000
1.880.558.000
1.884,132.000
1112776 000
1438 011,000
1.302,500,000
1.183,865,000
1,310,838,000
1,437 986000

1,100,644 000



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS
DECEMBER 31, 1997

. Taxpayer

Orange and Rockland Utilities
and Con Edison Co.

Orange and Rockland Utilities
Falisades Interstate Park
American Home Products
Spring Valley Water Co.
Consolidated Edison

Blue Hilt Plaza, tnc.
Corporate Property investors

Beil Atlantic
Krupp Realty Corp.

Total

Note: Total taxable full values on the 1997 tax roll are 318 795 B8O 785,

Type of
Business

Public Utility
Pubilic Utiliby
State Lands
Industnal
Water Supply
Public Utility

Commercial

Retail Shopping

Fublic Utility

Commercial

133

$_2,978,98

Fudl

. Valuation

722,028 448
678,760,150
448 788 603
440,016 828
211,984,312
139,032 085
110,363,675

96,575,975

89,934 460

41466326

0,870

Pearcent
of Total
Fult
Valuation

3.8 %
36
2.4
2.3
1.1
0.7
0.6

0.5



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

MISCELLANEQUS STATISTICS
DECEMBER 31, 1997

Date of Incorporation:
Form of Government:

Location and Area:

Employees:
(Authorized Positions)
General Government
Transportation
Pubilic Safety
Social Services
Environment and Housing
Other

Fire Protection:
Number of Stations
Municipal Fire Departmeris
Number of Volunteer Fire Firefighters

Police Protection:
Number of Stations
Number of Police Gfficers
(Authorized Positions)

Ambuiance:
Number of Emergency Services

Mumbper of Vehicles

Water Operations:
Number of Metered Accounts
Average Daily Consumption
Miles of Waler Supply
SuUpply

1798
County Executive/County Legislature

The County is located in Southeast New York State, on the
west bank of the Hudson River. The geographical center

of the County is situated about 33 miles north of the Manhattan
business district in New York City. The County has a land area
of 176 square miles, about 30% of which is devoted to pariland
and recreational purposes.

352
118
389
1,842
113
g5

..2.908

45
26
3,606

12

£33

15

(2 Fye Company Based)
37

{3 Paramedic)

57 110
28,506,000
G905
Several underground stream sources,
springs, ponds and wells; also two
reservoirs.



COUNTY OF ROCKLAND, NEW YORK

MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS (Conciuded)
DECEMBER 31, 1897

Natural Gas, Electricity and
Telephone Services:

Public Works:
Number of Street Lights
Mies of Paved Streets
Mites of Sanitary Sewers

Public Education
{independent School District)
Elementary Schools
Intermediate Schools
Middie Schools
High Schoois
Total Enroliment

Recreation and Culture;
Total Acres
Number of Parks and Recreational Facilities
Number of Libraries
Number of Volumes

Population (United States Census):
1940
1950
1960
18970
1980
1980

Fetail Trade:
Number of Shopping Centers
Floor Area

Furnished by private corporations.

16.032
863
1.08C

40
4

P
I

11
52.416

34 144
13

19
880,928

74,261
88,276
136,803
228,903
258 530
265475

24

3,340,000 sg fi.






